
 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687 
 
 
 

Agenda 

Regular Meeting 

City of Lake Worth 

Historic Resources Preservation Board 

City Hall Commission Room  

7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL 

 

 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 09, 2016 6:00 PM 
 

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda  
 

4. Approval of Minutes 
 
A. October 19, 2016 Meeting Minutes 
 
B. September 21, 2016 HRPB Workshop Minutes 
 

5. Cases 
 
A. Swearing in of Staff and Applicants 
 
B. Proof of Publication 
 

1. Lake Worth Herald Publication 
 
C. Withdrawals/Postponements 
 
D. Consent 
 
E. Public Hearings 
 

1. Board Disclosure 
 

2. HRPB Project #16-00100228: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for the demolition of a contributing 250 square foot accessory garage structure, 
installation of a new inground pool, and the construction of a new +/-  901 square foot 
accessory structure including a historic waiver from the accessory structure limitations at 



November 9, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

230 North Palmway; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-038-0080. The subject property is 
contributing to the Old Lucerne Local Historic District. 

 
F. Unfinished Business 
 
G. New Business 
 

1. HRPB Project #16-00100215: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for an addition for the single-family structure located at 1005 North Palmway; PCN# 
38-43-44-21-15-298-0150. The subject property was constructed in 1940 and is a non-
contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne Local Historic District. 

 
2. HRPB Project #16-00100234: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 

for window and door replacement for the single-family structure located at 1401 South 
Lakeside Drive; PCN# 38434427010770080.  The subject property was 
constructed in 1953 and is a non-contributing resource within the South Palm Park 
Local Historic District. 

 
6. Planning Issues 

 
7. Public Comments (3 minute limit) 

 
8. Departmental Reports 

 
9. Board Member Comments 

 
10. Adjournment 

 
11. If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with 

respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of 
the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105) 
 
NOTE: ALL CITY BOARDS ARE AUTHORIZED TO CONVERT ANY PUBLICLY 
NOTICED MEETING INTO A WORKSHOP SESSION WHEN A QUORUM IS NOT 
REACHED. THE DECISION TO CONVERT THE MEETING INTO A WORKSHOP 
SESSION SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE CHAIR OR THE CHAIR'S DESIGNEE, 
WHO IS PRESENT AT THE MEETING. NO OFFICIAL ACTION SHALL BE TAKEN 
AT THE WORKSHOP SESSION, AND THE MEMBERS PRESENT SHOULD LIMIT 
THEIR DISCUSSION TO THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FOR THE PUBLICLY 
NOTICED MEETING. (Sec. 2-12 Lake Worth Code of Ordinances) 
 
Note:   One or more members of any Board, Authority or Commission may attend and speak at 
any meeting of another City Board, Authority or Commission.    
 
All project-related back-up materials, including full plan sets, are available for review by the 
public in the Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division located at 1900 2nd Avenue 
North. 



 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687 
 
 
 

Agenda 

Regular Meeting 

City of Lake Worth 

Historic Resources Preservation Board 

City Hall Commission Room  

7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL 

 

 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2016 6:30 PM 
 

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences 
Present were: Madeleine Burnside, Chairman Herman Robinson, Judith Just, Vice-Chairman 
Darrin Engel, Erin Fitzhugh Sita. 
Also present: Aimee Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator; Maxime Ducoste, Assistant 
Director Planning and Preservation; Jordan Hodges, Associate Preservation Planner; Pamala 
Ryan, Board Attorney; Sherie Coale, Board Secretary. 
Absent: Tom Norris and Robert D’Arinzo. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda  
M. Burnside requests to re-order agenda to allow 914 S Palmway to be last on the agenda. 
Motion: M. Burnside moves to re-order, J. Just 2nd 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous 

4. Approval of Minutes 
 
A. September 14, 2016 RM Minutes 

Motion: M. Burnside moves to accept minutes as presented J. Just 2nd. 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 
Board Chairman inquires as to when to expect Workshop minutes. Staff responds the intent 
is to present a document outlining proposals/suggestions/ideas at the same time as the 
minutes are brought forward. Board Chair asks if that is anticipated by November meeting, 
to which staff is hopeful.  

5. Cases 
 
A. Swearing in of Staff and Applicants 

Board Secretary administered oath. 
B. Proof of Publication 
 

1. LW Herald - 112 South J Street 
Provided in meeting packet 

C. Withdrawals/Postponements 
 
D. Consent 



October 19, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

 
E. Public Hearings 
 

1. Board Disclosure 
M. Burnside-friends with 914 S Palmway applicant, will not affect her decision. 
H. Robinson – spoken with Mr. Contin, will not affect decision. 
D. Engel-driven by Bermuda Cay and has had conversations with applicant, will not 
affect decision. 

 
2. HRPB Project # 16-00100221:  Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness 

(COA) for 112 South J Street for New Construction to allow a +/- 975 square foot 
single-family structure including a historic waiver from the accessory structure 
limitations, and a request for an addition and exterior alterations for the existing rear 
+/- 505 square foot single-family structure pursuant to Sections 23.2-7, 23.3-8, 23.3-11, 
and 23.5-4 of the Land Development Regulations.  The subject property is located in 
the Medium Density Multi-family (MF-30) zoning district and is subject to the 
provisions of the Single-Family Two-Family Residential (SFTF-14) zoning district.  The 
existing structure is a contributing resource in the Southeast Lucerne Local Historic 
District. PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-049-0110. 
 
Staff: Presents case analysis and findings. Staff is in support of the Historic Waiver 
request. Landscape requirements will apply and be evaluated at time of permit. 
Board: D. Engel asks about the front yard parking space. A. Sunny responds the 
applicant has met front yard permeable requirements and has met parking requirement 
with 2 parking spaces at the rear of the property.  
Applicant: Juan Contin, Architect, agrees with most conditions except the additional 
columns. A. Sunny suggests there will be paired columns (only 2 more). Applicant 
agrees.  Parking space in front was existing, it is to the side of the structure.  
Board: D. Engel mentions there is street parking with a curb cut (existing), expresses 
the concern about the trees in the yard. Applicant acknowledges and states they are 
remaining even with the parking space in front yard. D. Engel states this is a frame 
vernacular and has concerns about terminology of columns, believes accurate term is 
“posts”, and they should be equally spaced without regard to symmetry. Staff states it is 
more compatible to have parking to the side of the structure rather than the front of the 
structure. 
Public Comments: Jonathan Wright-Applicant-112 South J Street- inquires about curb 
cut fees, is agreeable with only 2 spaces in back, especially if the curb cut fees are 
prohibitive. The current sidewalk and existing curb is in good shape. Does not want to 
park in front of house. 
Motion: E. Fitzhugh Sita moves to approve and add a new condition #11: Site design 
may be modified to remove the parking space in the front yard subject to staff review 
and meeting all codes. Motion superceded by substitute motion. 
Motion: D. Engel moves to approve HRPB Project # 16-00100221 striking condition 
#1 and condition #3. Replace one word in #7 “accurate” to “similar”. E Fizthugh Sita 
2nd .  
Staff and Board discuss removal of condition #3. The height of the wraparound porch 
has sufficient clearance and meets code of 6’8”. A. Sunny reiterates the spacing between 
“posts” is very wide. Applicant in agreement. 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous.  



October 19, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

 
  

 
3. HRPB Project #16-00100200:  Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness 

(COA) for 301 South Federal Highway for new construction of a +/- 6,281 square foot, 
two-story, three-unit townhome structure on the southwest corner of S. Federal 
Highway and 3rd Avenue South, 301 South Federal Highway. The 0.15 acre site is 
currently undeveloped and is located in the Mixed Use-Federal Highway (MU-FH) 
zoning district and the Southeast Lucerne Local Historic District. PCN# 38-43-44-21-
15-109-0090. The Applicant is requesting a continuance to a date certain of November 
9, 2016. 
Applicant today has requested until December 14, 2016. 
Motion: D. Engel moves to continue HRPB Project #16-00100200, J. Just 2nd. 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 

 
F. Unfinished Business 
 

1. HRPB Project #16-00100193: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for window and door replacement for the single-family structure located at 1111 N 
Lakeside Drive; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-358-0140. The subject property was constructed 
in 1951 and is a contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne Local Historic 
District.  
Staff: Presents case analysis and findings, which was previously heard and continued. 
Requests previous testimony and reports given during the September 14, 2016 HRPB 
meeting be entered into the record. Contractor and applicant have provided a letter they 
agree to staff conditions. Previously staff had recommended repair of windows not 
replacement. Applicant and contractor are unavailable. Replacements being requested 
are impact. Awnings will remain, replicate muntin pattern on front, and aluminum 
frames. Garage door to be replaced. Board will need to decide between repair or 
replacement. D. Engel asks if an analysis of unrepairable has been presented, staff 
responds no. 30 % is the threshold for repair vs. replacement. 
Public Comment: Ted Johnson South Palmway-during storm many people did not 
have labor to install shutters. Elderly are at the mercy of elements and crime.  
Chip Gutherie: 823 S. Palmway energy efficient impact replacements replicating same 
style should be allowed. 
Ted Brownstein: 1016 S. Lakeside enters Courtesy Notice of Formation of South Palm 
Park into the record. 
Motion to receive and file: E. Fitzhugh Sita moves to accept document (Courtesy 
notice dated April 14, 2000 re: Formation of South Palm Park Historic District.) D. 
Engel 2nd 
Board: H. Robinson- this case is not a code issue. Wants to distinguish between a code 
issue and an ordinance. The Secretary of the Interior recommendations are part of the 
Land Development Regulations not the Florida Building Code. 
Board Attorney: Advises Board should not consider the newly entered document in 
deliberations, the actual ordinance would be more persuasive. 
Board: J. Just would like to consider modern convenience, safety and energy efficiency. 
Does not want to burden older neighbors with having to place shutters in time of 
storm. 



October 19, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

E. Fitzhugh Sita – need guidelines/ clear criteria regarding whether it can be repaired 
and any mitigating factors. Previous discussion of primary façade being a priority. 
M. Burnside- Would rather see impact or energy efficient windows that do not require 
shuttering as opposed to non-historic shutter tracks, would be a cleaner look. 
D. Engel states the exact style replacements for these windows are not even available. 
M. Ducoste wants the record to reflect the applicant has agreed to do not “what Aimee 
wants” but rather what ordinances require. There shouldn’t be a perception that it is 
“what Aimee wants” as has been stated. 
D. Engel asks about specific openings. Proposal is for even thirds for the horizontal 
rollers. 
Motion: D. Engel moves to approve HRPB Project #16-00100193 with staff 
recommended conditions and modification to Condition #3 openings 10 and 14 can 
remain horizontal rollers as proposed. New Condition #12 - remove existing type 
accordion shutters where needed. E. Fitzhugh Sita 2nd.  Amend #3 to choice of 
applicant horizontal rollers or single hung E. Fitzhugh Sita2nd the amendment. 
Vote: Ayes, all unanimous. 

  
2. HRPB Project #16-00100104: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 

for an addition to the existing structure at 1002 South Lakeside Drive; PCN# 38-43-44-
27-01-024-0050. The subject property was constructed in 1960 and is a non-
contributing resource within the South Palm Park Local Historic District.  The 
Applicant is requesting a continuance. 
Motion: E. Fitzhugh Sita to continue HRPB Project #16-00100104, to a time requested 
by applicant, (time certain not required.) At the pleasure of the applicant. J. Just 2nd. 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 

 
G. New Business 
 

1. HRPB Project #16-00100217: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for roof replacement to the subject property located at 901 North Federal Highway, 
PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-286-0160.  The subject building was constructed c.1926 and is a 
contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne Local Historic District. 
Staff: Presents case analysis and findings. Not recommending change to proposed 
material. Horizontal lines are compatible unlike vertical lines of a standing seam roof. 
Staff has located 3 replacements products that replicate the existing metal shingles 
available for this area. 
Applicant: Iwona Baran finds the metal shingles not available or prohibitively 
expensive. Roof is old and dilapidated, sore thumb. Wants to preserve the look of the 
building. Does not like the look of the metal shingle and prefers to follow contractor 
recommendation. Not prepared to replace with same material. 
Board: H. Robinson inquires as to whether the applicant is amenable to looking at 
other metal roof types. Applicant replies in the affirmative. E. Fitzhugh Sita inquires as 
to whether the 30 % threshold for replacement has been met, to which A. Sunny replies 
that only applies to windows and doors. Board members point out different features 
they believe were not original. 
Public Comment: None 
Motion: D. Engel moves to approve HRPB Project #16-00100217 with Condition #1 
Shall be silver metal shingles to replicate the existing metal shingles or silver 5V crimp 
roofing subject to staff approval.  



October 19, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

Staff would like to know why 5V crimp is acceptable to the Board. Board responds 2-
story with lower slope so it is not as visible. J. Just 2nd  
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 
 

2. HRPB Project #16-00100224: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for installation of a PVC fence at the single-family residence located at 914 South 
Palmway; PCN# 38-43-44-27-01-032-0050.  The subject property was constructed in 
1968 and is a non-contributing resource within the South Palm Park Local Historic 
District. 
Heard last due to re-rordering of agenda:  
Staff: Presents case analysis and findings. Does not recommend approval. 
Applicant: Kathleen Holmes 730 South Lakeside Drive. Understands the philosophical 
reason for not permitting vinyl and PVC. However after many years in S. Florida does 
not want to paint. Would like it to “frame” the property. Earlier replacement of chain 
link and aluminum in poor repair.    
Board: D. Engel inquires if a COA is correct or if a Waiver is more appropriate. M. 
Burnside questions staff regarding the style and material.  H. Robinson’s concern is the 
material, not the style. Discussion ensues regarding material (PVC), style and quality of 
construction. Board members agree there are varying levels of quality in both 
construction and material. D. Engel mentions it is a fence not a structure. M. Ducoste 
points out there are no specifications nor standards included with this submittal. H. 
Robinson wants to go case by case and does not want to visit the PVC/plastic issue 
with fences. 
Public Comment: Chip Gutherie – fence looked cute when it was installed. Applicant 
has improved the property in general.  He has a vinyl fence. It is a dilemma to judge 
quality. His has lasted through 2 hurricanes and has not faded or warped. Testifies that 
all the neighbors loved the applicants’ fence. 
Ted Johnson 802 South Palmway-poor looking fences exist of each type (wood, vinyl 
aluminum.) Believes there is overreach when evaluating non-contributing structures and 
it creates hostility. 
Ted Brownstein 1016 South Lakeside – Has heard rumors about the bad reputation the 
City has amongst contractors due to “code”. Most of the minutia (of the code) is over 
the head of the average citizen. 
Piotr Monaco -714 South Palmway- make us want to stay here and invest in our houses. 
M. Burnside- There is a high likelihood that one broken picket will destroy a fence as 
opposed to a wood fence. E. Fitzhugh Sita- from personal experience does not like 
vinyl would never have installed one at her property if she knew then what she knows 
now. 
Motion: D. Engel moves to approve HRPB Project #16-00100224. M. Ducoste 
questions how Chair can state this a quality fence, what is the reasoning that this is 
quality. Chair responds the assemblage is quality. E. Fitzhugh Sita – no standard to 
judge the quality and it now appears the Historic Board is the only body in the city 
approving vinyl as is not approved anywhere in the city. 
Vote: Motion passes 4/1 E. Fitzhugh Sita dissenting. 

 
3. HRPB Project #16-00100216: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 

for window and door replacement for the single-family structure located at 1001 N M 
Street; PCN# 38434421153040160.  The subject property was constructed in 1941 
and is a contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne Local Historic District. 



October 19, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

Heard second from last due to re-ordering of agenda.  
Staff: Presents case analysis and findings. Staff is not recommending approval of the 
project. 
J. Just asks about screens. 
Applicant: Dan and Heather Cooney 1001 N M Street. Many varied window types in 
the house. Proposal is for PGT vinyl which will have a lifetime warranty. No more 
peeling paint. Grey screens are not a problem.  
Board: D. Engel sees evidence of warping and non-repairable condition on the existing 
windows. Applicant represents the vinyl is more expensive than aluminum because they 
are low e-rated and that aluminum impact does not come with low e-ratings.  Staff 
clarifies that the aluminum impact does indeed exist with low e-ratings.  Applicant states 
the vinyl is easier to lift and impact gives safety. Vinyl does not conduct heat but the 
aluminum does. 
Board discusses the shortcomings of vinyl. H. Robinson has experienced vinyl windows 
in the north and prefers them. D. Engel believes the life span is less. E. Fitzhugh Sita 
states this is not the same shape or style of window, does not even replicate the same 
style. 
Motion: J. Just moves to approve HRPB Project #16-00100216 with staff 
recommended conditions modifying Condition #1 to strike aluminum and replace with 
vinyl and allow double or single hung. M. Burnside withdraws her 2nd (as the applicant is 
requesting single hung) and thinks it should be double hung; as she discovers property is 
non-contributing reinstates her 2nd.   
Vote: Motion passes 3/2. Dissenting D. Engel, E. Fitzhugh Sita. 

 
6. Planning Issues 

None 
7. Public Comments (3 minute limit) 

None 
8. Departmental Reports 

Contract with Historic Survey Company was approved last night at Commission. 
Motion: E. Fitzhugh Sita moves to send letter from Board re: any funding necessary to 
implement the design guidelines. 

A. Sunny mentions inaugural Historical Society of Lake Worth at Brogues. M. Burnside states the 
 objective/mission is history, research and education. They will not collect or preserve anything nor 
introduce itself into situations. 
9. Board Member Comments: 

E. Fitzhugh Sita clarifies her votes against both vinyl products this evening. Until something 
(code) changes, she stands by her conviction and does not want to be perceived as arbitrary.  
D. Engel-828 South Lakeside roof fell in and large backhoe on property. 
M. Burnside will not be here for November meeting. 
H. Robinson asks about list of demolitions and schedules. Plaques for historic properties, will 
they be non-traditional materials. Staff unable to provide an exact time frame. Need another 
workshop to discuss vinyl. 
J. Just states the fence reviewed several meetings ago is the reason Board needs to see fences. 
Shuffleboard court is installing a six (6) foot aluminum fence. 
 

10. Adjournment: 9:28 PM 
 
Attest:     __________________________ 



October 19, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

      Herman Robinson, Chairman 

 
Submitted By:    __________________________ 
      Sherie Coale, Board Secretary 
 
Minutes Approved:   ___________________________ 
       Date 
 



 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687 
 
 

Agenda 

Workshop Meeting 

City of Lake Worth 

Historic Resources Preservation Board 

City Hall Commission Chambers  

7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL 

 

 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2016 6:01 PM 
 

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences 
Present were: Herman Robinson, Judith Just, Madeleine Burnside, Tom Norris, Darrin Engel, 
Erin Fitzhugh Sita, Robert D’Arinzo 
Also present were: Aimee Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator;  Maxime Ducoste, Assistant 
Director for Planning & Preservation;  Pamala Ryan, Board Attorney; Sherie Coale, Board 
Secretary. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda  
Motion: J. Just.to reorder for agenda placing board comment and public comment before planning 
issues. R. D’Arinzo 2nd. 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 

Public Comment: 
Anna Donahue 1025 North O Street asks about whether the workshop is a joint workshop of 
Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Board. 
A. Sunny clarifies that there are two (2) Boards, this is the Historic Resources Preservation 
Board, not the Planning & Zoning Board. 

4. Planning Issues- Staff asks what specific concerns the Board would like to address. 
Board: E. Fitzhugh Sita- Would like to have user friendly handouts and documentation for 
residents, summary for windows, doors roof requirements, styles. Exemptions should be for 
supporting climate, infrastructure resiliency for sea level rise, and metal roofs. 
D. Engel- comments at a later time. 
J. Just- Does not want get overzealous with detail. Not all properties are on the National 
Historic Register. Many homes are run down and people are needing to renovate. People are 
not wealthy nor can they afford to put money toward maintaining detail. 
R. D’Arinzo- Has Realtor experience with young families not knowing the ramifications of 
purchasing in a historic neighborhood. Agrees with the ideas of informational pamphlets 
detailing the doors, windows, roofs allowed; guidelines to aid residents in material and style 
selection. 
M. Burnside-Concerned with historically important, valuable homes getting a lot of attention, 
the resident should be fully aware a historic home was purchased. There are many less than 
desirable homes that we insist on maintaining at the same level that should probably be torn 
down, rather than renovated not always to the best standards. Would like to see new, green, 



September 21, 2016 HRPB Workshop Meeting 

 

 

 

compatible construction in the districts so the historic districts are more vibrant. Little homes in 
the Historic districts that get renovated quickly then rented out however the renovations are not 
all good i.e. interiors with mold. 
T. Norris- comments at a later time. 
H. Robinson-“Cottages of LW” is a beautiful book up for distribution next month. Board 
recognizes the historic districts are not frozen in time and the Board needs to work at making 
preservation part of the future. Education is not as expensive as ignorance. 
E. Fitzhugh Sita- Cost containment can be effective by deciding which façade is of primary 
importance and paying attention to the detail on those locations. 
D. Engel- Biggest spenders are not the most effective in preserving the appearance. Simple 
maintenance of a property is not always costly. 
 Staff: M. Ducoste- Historic neighborhoods provide a certain cachet and this is what we try to 
preserve every day. Protect the integrity of the structures. Find an amenable solution. It’s not 
always a simple equation, compromise if the Board prefers the terminology. 
PowerPoint presentation by A. Sunny with suggested areas of review. 
Discussion of front, side, and rear facades. Primary, secondary, tertiary. Example shown is 
corner lot. Right of Way versus the alley. 
Some corner lots have exposure on two (2) streets and therefore two primary façades. Asks 
Board how they feel about differentiating between the facades in regard to preservation but 
cautions the practice of facadism (treating each side differently) is not a good preservation 
practice. 
J. Just asks if a percentage of change would be allowed. Concurrence is that would complicate 
the issue. R. D’Arinzo -If you can’t see it, such as a flat roof or rear façade, unless it is a 
contributing structure, it should be a different level of review. E. Fitzhugh Sita- 2 categories of 
homes. Historic contributing homes and those homes where people are seeking a tax 
exemption should receive stricter review. All primary facades of contributing and non- 
contributing should be of utmost concern. 
There should be compatibility review of non-contributing structures within any historic district 
(scale, size, mass) among other criteria. Staff states all districts have design review standards for 
non-contributing structures, these homes are still a part of district. Can be listed as non-
contributing for various reasons such as age, changes resulting in the elimination of 
characteristics and qualities that made it contributing, some changes are irreversible. Non-
contributing does not mean forever.  
J. Just requests clarification about the survey. Does age automatically qualify the property as 
contributing? A. Sunny states no, the homeowner would have to request a re-survey of the 
property. Can a homeowner have a property excluded/ removed from the survey?  Staff 
responds in the negative. D. Engel- Land Development Regulations state Certificates of 
Appropriateness are required for properties in a designated district, does not differentiate 
between contributing and non-contributing. 
A. Sunny mentions the survey is forthcoming in 2017. Staff has applied for grants for design 
guidelines. M. Burnside – inquires whether abandoned, boarded, or demolished properties can 
be bought by individuals in those states of disrepair. A. Sunny speaks regarding procedures for 
the city to demolish a structure. Just because the city demolishes a house, it does not necessarily 
follow that the city owns the lot. Health and safety concerns will allow the city to demolish, this 
is a discussion for code enforcement.  Compatibility is required for the rebuild of property. 
Innovation is allowed so long as it is compatible. 
Of primary importance should be the façade that fronts the street followed by secondary street 
side on corner lots, followed by secondary facades. 



September 21, 2016 HRPB Workshop Meeting 

 

 

 

Clarification: D. Engel believes owner should be allowed freedom and creativity on tertiary 
façade, with the consideration that it may not be the best thing to do structurally. 
R-O-W-/ Alley-The level of review for alleys-all alleys in all districts are not created equal, 
some alleys are utilized much more as pedestrian and vehicular venues. Garage doors, accessory 
structures. 
H. Robinson-inquires about a horizontal fence A. Sunny states that some horizontal fencing 
could be compatible. 
A. Sunny continues with PowerPoint presentation and showcases elements involved in a 
review. Windows- single-hung vs double-hung. Aluminum vs vinyl vs wood, can the average 
passer-by distinguish?  E. Fitzhugh Sita doesn’t mind replacement windows on tertiary facade. 
To which J. Just disagrees residents should be prohibited from replacing contributing windows 
while allowing the balance of the house to be replaced. Staff should be allowed to review and 
approve @ 70%, according to D. Engel. Applicants need to understand the right to dispute at 
Board level takes time. Single-hung are allowed currently although double-hung is 
recommended. Vinyl is not currently allowed. Primarily because it is not a sustainable product, 
does not function well in South FL. However recent improvements in products could lead to a 
different experience.  H. Robinson does not like vinyl as they are not wood.  A. Sunny mentions 
City of WPB recently decided not allow vinyl after a 3 hour meeting without even debating the 
grades of vinyl. Vinyl is typically disallowed in Historic Districts nationwide. Denied in Lake 
Worth because they are not compatible. Product availability varies by region.          
Vinyl windows- Consensus- Board would consider vinyl windows for non-contributing 
structures on a case by case basis.  
Metal casement windows - importance according to primary, secondary, tertiary 
Staff is not typically in favor of horizontal rollers. Partially due to look of screen. However for 
3-part casement windows a horizontal roller may be the only option. 
Jalousie windows and doors-can be replaced with compatible type- Board would like for this 
to be allowed with a compatible style. Staff recommendation for jalousie doors would be a full-
light Single French door, and jalousie windows is a casement window. Board does not want to 
see the jalousie replacements. 
Awning windows- 3-light awning windows cannot be replicated with a single-hung, but a 2-
light and 4-light can be closely replicated. No impact awning windows are available. Repair 
advocated prior to replacement. 
Doors-5 lite, 15 light is very common, 3 panel with four lights. Staff recommends repair of 
original door. Compatibility with style. 
Building dept would clarify the frame to remain and replace the leaf. 
Garage Doors-recessed panel doors and flush panel are recommended depending on 
architectural style of structure. Fiberglass materials for doors and windows are being seen more 
frequently and are of a different quality from vinyl. Shutters could be installed over to protect 
during a wind event. Kevlar reinforced Fabric screens are being utilized at various places. 
Roofs-Bermuda vs plantation style, both are types of flat white concrete tile roofs, although the 
interlocking feature is different. Plantation tile (10 x13 and 13x17) probably slightly cheaper due 
to larger size. Bermuda now being made in a larger size. 
J. Just asks about hardship process due to cost of white concrete tile installation. 
3-dimensional asphalt shingle has been considered under an economic hardship. Case by case 
basis. Consensus is if concrete tile being replaced with anything other than flat white concrete 
tile it must come to Board. 
Consensus: Asphalt replaced with metal should be considered if a non-contributing structure 
on a case by case basis. Ordinance does not currently allow Board to relinquish review of non-
contributing to staff only. Cannot jeopardize grant. 



September 21, 2016 HRPB Workshop Meeting 

 

 

 

Exterior Building Materials/Siding: Consideration of new materials as long as it is 
compatible. The challenge with Hardieplank is the depth and profile of original wood cannot 
often be duplicated. Hardie is significantly thinner, more costly than real wood siding. Secretary 
of Interior has not accepted it as a like material. No vinyl siding should be allowed- Consensus. 
Stucco texture usually processed at staff level according to style of structure. 
Fences- Public Comment: Vinyl and PVC not allowed, prohibited in city code, (not in 
historic guidelines). Decorative wrought iron and decorative walls, shell walls etc.. E.  Fitzhugh 
Sita relates her personal experience with PVC fencing. Fencing material applies to all properties 
not just district wide. A problem with PVC is that pickets get broken and are hard to replace.  
Staff: Horizontal fencing to be considered in the alley for all structures. 
Public comment: Marty Welfeld – has on old vinyl fence that looks new. Quality & style 
consensus to allow LDR to allow vinyl. Can be discussed at P&Z. 
Board Attorney: Recommends workshop results should come back to HRPB as a formal 
document for approval prior to asking the Planning & Zoning Board to consider items affecting 
all areas as an agenda item. Any desired changes to Land Development Regulations should be 
formalized by HRPB prior to asking the other Board to consider the recommendations. 
The review process for appeals was mentioned. Increased flexibility is important and part of the 
reason for the neighborhood meetings but the focus should not solely be for creating 
investment opportunities. 
Parking not encouraged in front yard and should be consistent with character of structure.  
Question arises as to whether other cities to provide tax relief. 
Historic District Signs/ Plaques- Soon to be seen. Not an incentive but a notice of appreciation. 
Ceramic would be nice, utilization of local artist talent was suggested, suggestions about House 
names. 
Even with input from neighborhoods there are still limitations to what can be done. Staff is 
executing the ordinances. Board states there are many cities with Historic Boards and we are 
constrained by the ordinances and guidelines. When someone doesn’t agree, they come here. 
Public Comment: Marty Welfeld 829 N Lakeside- City does not maintain alleys. Historic 
designation of 50 years for the survey is an arbitrary date. Young people coming for 
affordability and looking to improve properties. 
Teresa Miller 829 N Lakeside-is in favor of people investing in the old western properties, we 
should be glad for these people.   
Scott Maxwell-Vice Mayor- sat on the committee to institute Historic Districts, and has no 
validation to show value of preservation in Lake Worth. Speaks about real and perceived 
subjectivity.  Staff should get away from subjectivity and follow the law/ordinances. We have 
created a bureaucracy with which people can’t deal. 9:01pm 
Board: Member states he lives here because of the historic district, another member is updating 
a house outside the Historic district and can understand the frustration of homeowners.  
Vice Mayor would like a quantification of the value of properties with historic designation. 
 

5. Adjournment 9:20 pm 
 
Attest:     __________________________ 
      Herman Robinson, Chairman 
 
Submitted By:    __________________________ 
      Sherie Coale, Board Secretary 
 
Minutes Approved:   ___________________________ 

Date 





 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  

 

MEMORANDUM DATE:   November 3, 2016 
 
AGENDA DATE:  November 9, 2016 
 
TO:   Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 
 
RE:   230 North Palmway 
 
FROM:  Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 
 Department for Community Sustainability 
 
TITLE:  HRPB Project Number 16-00100228: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the 
demolition of a contributing 250 square foot accessory garage structure, installation of a new inground pool, and 
the construction of a new +/-  901 square foot accessory structure including a historic waiver from the accessory 
structure limitations at 230 North Palmway; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-038-0080. The subject property is contributing 
to the Old Lucerne Local Historic District. 
 

OWNERS: Patricia Wiseman and Luana Gibbons 

  230 North Palmway    

       Lake Worth, FL 33460  
 

BACKGROUND:  

The subject property has an existing, contributing single-family Frame Vernacular structure built by Architect 
Edgar S. Wortman c.1940.  The property has public frontage on North Palmway to the west and 3rd Ave North to 
the north. The original architectural plans for the building are available in the City’s property files. Based on the 
information in the City’s property file, the building has undergone multiple changes over time including a rear 
addition, window replacement, front porch expansion, siding replacement, and roof replacement approved by 
the HRPB in March 2012 under case number 12-00100038. Overall, the existing building retains a moderate 
degree of historic integrity of location, setting, materials, and design. 

 

REQUEST:  

The Applicant has submitted plans for the demolition of the contributing garage structure with public frontage on 
3rd Ave North to allow for the construction of a new two-story storage/office accessory structure and pool. The 
Applicant proposes to connect the existing single-family residence to the new accessory structure with a new 
wood pergola running parallel to the existing fencing along 3rd Ave North. A new 6’ tall fence to serve as a pool 
barrier is also proposed.  The Applicant has provided proposed architectural plans for the building, including a 
site plan, floor plan, and elevations. The proposed building is designed in a Coastal Florida style, with elements of 
local Frame Vernacular architecture.  

 

The proposed new construction has public frontage on 3rd Ave North to the north.  The building will be 
constructed with concrete block walls with HardiePlank siding and a hipped metal roof to match the existing 
primary structure.  Other proposed finishes for the outside of the building include impact aluminum single-hung 
windows and French doors, and a large decorative pergola-style porch with columns. 

 



HRPB No. 16-00100228 
230 North Palmway 

COA Application – New Construction 
Page 2 

 

The property is Zoned Single Family Residential (SF-R). 

 

Dimension Required by Code Existing or Proposed 

Lot size 7,500 sq. ft. for single-family 6,750 sq. ft.      (existing non-
conforming) 

Lot width 75’-0”  50’-0”                (existing non-
conforming) 

Lot depth n/a 135’-0” 

Front setback 20’-0” 29’-2” 

Side setback 10% of lot width = 5’-0” each 
side 

North P.L. to Existing – 12’-0” 

North P.L. to Proposed – 5’-0” 

South P.L. to Existing – 3’0” 

         Approved variance by HRPB in 2012 

South P.L. to Proposed – 5’0” 

Rear setback 15’-0” or 10% of lot depth= 
13’-5” for primary building 

5’-0” for accessory structures 

54’-7” for primary building 

5’ to proposed accessory structure 

Height1 (Comp. Plan) 30’ for SFR land use 
designation 

20’-6” to mid-point of the roof 

Height (SFR zoning) 30’ for primary structure, 24’ 
for accessory, 2 stories 

20’-6” to mid-point of the roof 

F.A.R.2 0.50    (3,375 sq. ft.) 0.39   (2,640 sq. ft.)   

Max. Building Coverage3 
for a Medium Lot 

35% max.   (2,362.5 sq. ft.) 32%   (2,189.5 sq. ft.)  

Impermeable surface 55% max. = 3,712.5 sq. ft. 51.7% = 3,491 sq. ft.  

Accessory Structure 
Limitations 

Not to exceed 40% of the 
principal structure, or 1000 sq. 
ft. whichever is less 

Primary Structure:   1739 sq. ft. gross 

Allowed Accessory:  697 sq. ft. gross 

Proposed Structure:  901 sq. ft. gross 

Proposed Percentage:  51.8% 

*The proposal exceeds the 40% 
accessory structure limitation. 

 
 

                                                           
1 Building height:  The vertical distance measured from the minimum required floor or base flood elevation of twelve (12) 
inches above the crown of the road, whichever is less, to (a) the highest point of a flat roof; (b) the deck line of mansard roof, 
(c) the average height between eaves and ridge for gable, hip, and gambrel roofs, or (d) the average height between high and 
low points for a shed roof. The measurement of height shall not include decorative architectural elements, chimneys, 
mechanical equipment, church steeples and architecturally integrated signage, which may extend an additional ten (10) feet 
but cannot cover cumulatively more than ten (10) percent of the roof surface. 
2 Floor area ratio:  A regulatory technique which relates to total developable site area and the size (square feet) of 
development permitted on a specific site.  A numeric rating assigned to each land use category that determines the total 
gross square feet of all buildings as measured from each building’s exterior walls based upon the actual land area of the 
parcel upon which the buildings are to be located.  Total gross square feet calculated using the assigned floor area ratio shall 
not include such features as parking lots or the first three (3) levels of parking structures, aerial pedestrian crossovers, open 
or partially enclosed plazas, or exterior pedestrian and vehicular circulation areas. 
3 Building lot coverage: The area of a lot covered by the impervious surface associated with the footprint(s) of all buildings on 
a particular lot.  Structured parking garages are exempt from building lot coverage. 



HRPB No. 16-00100228 
230 North Palmway 

COA Application – New Construction 
Page 3 

 

ANALYSIS:   

New Construction: 
Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Consistency  
 
The proposed new construction project is consistent with all site data requirements in the City’s Zoning Code and 
Comprehensive Plan, except for the accessory structure limitation.  In order for this proposal to move forward, 
the site will require an exception from the accessory structure limitation, and Staff recommends the HRPB 
consider a historic waiver from the accessory structure limitations.  
 
According to LDR Section 23.5-4(r) the HRPB can choose to waive or modify certain land development regulations, 
if the proposal meets the following criteria: 
 
(A) The waiver or modification is in harmony with the general appearance and character of the 
neighborhood or district. 

Response: The request complies with this criterion.  The proposal is compatible with the Code criteria 
regarding New Construction in the historic districts, and Staff has recommended Conditions of Approval to 
further increase compatibility. 

(B) The project is designed and arranged in a manner that minimizes aural and visual impact on adjacent 
properties while affording the owner reasonable use of the land. 

Response: The request complies with this criterion. Although the new construction will be taller than the 
accessory garage being demolished, there is precedent for two-story structures in the immediate vicinity of 
230 North Palmway; including 231 N Lakeside Drive and 230 North O Street. The streetscape elevation shows 
that the proposed structure is compatible with the surrounding structures. 

(C) The waiver or modification will not injure the area or otherwise be detrimental to the public health, 
safety or welfare. 

Response: The request complies with this criterion.  The proposal does not exceed any Code requirements 
beyond the accessory structure limitation, and is therefore not detrimental to the public. 

(D) The waiver or modification is the minimum necessary to allow reasonable use of the property while 
preserving its historical attributes. 

Response: The Applicant intends to heavily utilize the proposed accessory structure as a home work space, as 
both owners currently work from home. The structure will also provide for storage, a laundry area, and a pool 
cabana. It is possible to build a smaller structure, which would more closely comply with Code, however the 
owners would prefer the design as submitted. 

 

Additionally, LDR Section 23.5-4(r) states that in approving a waiver or modification of property development 
regulations, the HRPB may prescribe any appropriate conditions necessary to protect and further the interests 
of the community and of abutting properties, including but not limited to: 

 

(A)  Landscape material, walls and fences as required buffering; 

(B)  Modification of the orientation of any openings; and 

(C)  Modification of site arrangements. 

(D)  The waiver or modification shall be incorporated into the findings of the certificate of appropriateness. 

 

The Applicant complies with the decision criteria and the proposal is compatible with the district and all 
additional LDR requirements. Staff recommends that the HRPB discuss LDR Section 23.5-4(r), specifically 
Criteria D, in regards to “reasonable use” to determine if the criteria for a historic waiver has been met. 



HRPB No. 16-00100228 
230 North Palmway 

COA Application – New Construction 
Page 4 

 

According to Code allowance, the Accessory Structure Limitation would be 695 sq. ft.  The proposed 
accessory structure is 901 sq. ft.  

 
The landscaping for the property will need to be evaluated to ensure it meets the minimum requirements of 
Section 23.6-1, Landscape Regulations.  Final review and approval will take place during the building permit 
review process. 

 

Historic Preservation 

Demolition and new construction within a local historic district are subject to specific criteria for visual 
compatibility as set forth in Section 23.5-4(k) of the City’s historic preservation regulations. These criteria are 
provided in Attachments 1 and 2 and include Staff’s response to each criterion. The criteria deal with massing, 
scale, materials, and design compatibility with the surrounding historic district. 

 
It is the analysis of Staff that the demolition and new construction project as proposed is compatible with the 
regulations set forth in the historic preservation ordinance.  The proposed design responds to the lot size, shape, 
and configuration and respects the lot development pattern in the neighborhood.  The design utilizes some 
character-defining design elements found in the Frame Vernacular architectural style, which is prevalent in the 
Old Lucerne Local Historic District and Lake Worth in general.   
 

Staff had previously worked with the Applicant to address window and door placements in order to avoid large 
expanses of blank façade. Staff also suggested replacing a pedestrian door with a garage door on the 3rd Ave 
North façade to reference the placement of the original garage bay, to provide a sense of cohesion among other 
garage facades in the immediate surroundings, and to allow for better access to the storage space.  The resulting 
revision drawings adequately addressed Staff concerns and propose a compatible, complementary design.  
 
Public Comment 
At the time of publication of the agenda, Staff has not received any public comments regarding this project. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONSISTENCY: 

The project, as proposed, is consistent with the following Comprehensive Plan goals and objectives concerning 
future land use and housing: 

 

Goal 1.3 To preserve and enhance the City’s community character as a quality residential and business center 
within the Palm Beach County urban area. (Objective 1.3.4) 

 

Goal 1.4 Encourage preservation and rehabilitation of historic and natural resources and where appropriate 
restrict development that would damage or destroy these resources. (Objective 1.4.2) 
 

Goal 3.1 To achieve a supply of housing that offers a range of residential unit styles and prices for current and 
anticipated homeowners and renters in all household income levels by the creation and/or preservation of 
housing units. (Objective 3.1.1) 
 
CONSEQUENT ACTION:   
Approve the application; approve the application with conditions; continue the hearing to a date certain to 
request additional information; or deny the application. 
 
 
 



HRPB No. 16-00100228 
230 North Palmway 

COA Application – New Construction 
Page 5 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends that the Board discuss the historic waiver request for relief from the accessory structure 
limitations and the criteria as outlined in Section 23.5-4(r). 
 
If the Board chooses to approve the historic waiver request, and the proposed demolition of the existing garage 
structure and new construction accessory structure, Staff recommends the following conditions: 
 

1) The existing garage structure shall be fully photo documented, and the photos shall be provided in 
electronic format to Staff, prior to commencing demolition of the structure. 

2) The roof and siding shall match in size, shape, profile, and material to that of the primary structure, 
subject to Staff review at permitting.  

3) The trim and sills for all windows and doors shall utilize historically similar detailing, as proposed, subject 
to Staff review at permitting. 

4) The windows and doors may be wood, aluminum, or fiberglass and shall not have reflective glass. 
5) All muntins shall be created using exterior raised applied muntins. No flat or internal muntins shall be 

permitted. 
6) Proposed shutters on the east and west facades shall be equal to half the size of the window.  
7) Shutters equal to the width of the windows shall be installed on the north façade of the structure fronting 

3rd Avenue North.  
8) Due to the schematic nature of the submitted drawings, the exact design and profile of the columns, 

beams, and purlins of the pergola shall be subject to Staff review at permitting.  
9) All proposed landscaping, fencing, hardscape, and mechanical equipment shall be subject to Staff review 

at permitting. 
10) The proposal shall comply with the Land Development Regulations and all other required Codes. 

 
POTENTIAL MOTION:   
I MOVE TO APPROVE HRPB 16-00100228: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the 
demolition of the contributing accessory garage and the new construction of a two-story accessory structure, 
including a historic waiver from the accessory structure limitations, for the subject property located at 230 North 
Palmway, based upon the preponderance of competent substantial evidence and the required historic waiver 
findings of fact, with the conditions as recommended by Staff. 
 
I MOVE TO DENY HRPB 16-00100228: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the demolition 
of the contributing accessory garage and the new construction of a two-story accessory structure, including a 
historic waiver from the accessory structure limitations, for the subject property located at 230 North Palmway, 
because the Applicant has not established by a preponderance of the evidence that the application is in 
compliance with the City of Lake Worth Land Development Regulations, the Secretary of the interiors Standards 
for the Rehabilitation of Historic Properties, and the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Decision Criteria – Demolition 
2. Decision Criteria – New Construction 
3. Photographs 
4. Proposed Architectural Plans  
5. Proposed Product Information 

 
 
 
 

 



HRPB No. 16-00100228 
230 North Palmway 

COA Application – New Construction 
Page 6 

 

 
LOCATION MAP 

 

 
 



 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE: November 3, 2016 

 

TO: Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 

 Department of Community Sustainability 

 

SUBJECT:  HRPB Project Number 16-00100228: Consideration of a Certificate of 

Appropriateness (COA) for the demolition of a contributing 250 square foot 

accessory garage structure, pool installation, and the construction of a new +/-  

901 square foot accessory structure including a historic waiver from the accessory 

structure limitations at 230 North Palmway; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-038-0080. The 

subject property is contributing to the Old Lucerne Local Historic District. 

 

HRPB Meeting Date: November 9, 2016 

  
 

Section 23.5-4k(3) Additional requirements for demolitions. 

 

A. Decisionmaking criteria. No certificate of appropriateness for demolition shall be issued by 

the HRPB unless the applicant has demonstrated that no other feasible alternative to 

demolition can be found. In making its decision to issue or deny a certificate of 

appropriateness to demolish, in whole or in part, a landmark building or structure, the 

HRPB shall, at a minimum, consider the following additional decisionmaking criteria and 

guidelines: 

 

(1) Is the structure of such interest or quality that it would reasonably fulfill criteria for 

designation as a landmark on the National Register of Historic Places? 

Response: The existing garage building is listed as a contributing resource in the National 

Register and Local Historic District.  The structure is not individually listed, and would not 

be eligible for individual designation. 

 

(2) Is the structure of such design, texture, craftsmanship, size, scale, detail, unique 

location or material that it could be reproduced only with great difficulty or 

economically unreasonable expense? 

Response: The existing garage building is a good example of a Frame Vernacular single-

car garage.  Frame Vernacular is a simple architectural style, using local design and 

craftsmanship prevalent during the construction period.  The design is simplistic enough 

to be easily and economically reproduced. 

 

(3) Is the structure one (1) of the few remaining examples of its kind in the city? 

Response: There are several other examples of Frame Vernacular single-car garages 

remaining in the City, including one directly across the street from this property. 



2 

 

(4) Would retaining the structure promote the general welfare of the city by providing 

an opportunity to study local history, architecture and design or by developing an 

understanding of the importance and value of a particular culture or heritage? 

Response: The simple Frame Vernacular design of this structure would not necessarily 

provide an exemplary opportunity to study local history or design.  Prior to demolition, 

Staff would recommend that the structure be thoroughly photographed for historical 

documentation purposes. 

 

(5) Does the permit application propose simultaneous demolition and new 

construction? If new construction is proposed, will it be compatible with its 

surroundings (as defined above) and, if so, what effect will those plans have on the 

character of the surrounding sites or district? 

Response: The application does propose simultaneous demolition and new construction, 

in accordance with the Code requirement.  The new construction accessory structure as 

proposed is compatible and complementary in design, as is outlined in Attachment 2, 

Decision Criteria for New Construction. 

 

(6) Would granting the certificate of appropriateness for demolition result in an 

irreparable loss to the city of a significant historic resource? 

Response: Although the existing garage building is a good example of a Frame Vernacular 

single-car garage, Staff’s analysis is that the demolition of the structure would not result 

in an irreparable loss of a significant historic resource. 

 

(7) Are there definite plans for the immediate reuse of the property if the proposed 

demolition is carried out, and what effect will those plans have on the architectural, 

historic, archeological or environmental character of the surrounding area or 

district? 

Response: The application does propose simultaneous demolition and new construction, 

in accordance with the Code requirement.  The proposal is to remove the existing garage 

structure, and immediately construct the new accessory structure.  The new construction 

accessory structure as proposed is compatible and complementary in design, as is 

outlined in Attachment 2, Decision Criteria for New Construction. 

 

(8) Is the building or structure capable of earning reasonable economic return on its 

value? 

Response: Yes, the existing house is approximately 1738 square feet and the garage 

structure is approximately 250 square feet, which is reasonably sized for properties within 

the historic district. 

 

(9) Would denial of demolition result in an unreasonable economic hardship for the 

property owner? 

Response: The property owners would like to use the proposed accessory structure as a 

home office space, as both owners currently work from home.  Their request states that 

the current primary structure does not meet their office-space needs. 



3 

 

(10) Does the building or structure contribute significantly to the historic character of a 

designated historic district and to the overall ensemble of buildings within the 

designated historic district? 

Response: The structure is a contributing resource within the Old Lucerne Historic 

District, however it is not specified as a significant, individually contributing resource.  The 

structure does contribute to a small grouping of similar Frame Vernacular garages in the 

immediate vicinity. 

(11) Has demolition of the designated building or structure been ordered by an appropriate 

public agency because of unsafe conditions? 

Response: No, the structure has not been ordered to be demolished. 

 

(12) Have reasonable measures been taken to save the building from further deterioration, 

collapse, arson, vandalism or neglect? 

Response: The structure has not been substantially restored, but it is not in immediate 

danger of collapse. 

 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE: November 3, 2016 

 

TO: Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 

 Department of Community Sustainability 

 

SUBJECT:  HRPB Project Number 16-00100228: Consideration of a Certificate of 

Appropriateness (COA) for the demolition of a contributing 250 square foot 

accessory garage structure, pool installation, and the construction of a new +/-  

901 square foot accessory structure including a historic waiver from the accessory 

structure limitations at 230 North Palmway; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-038-0080. The 

subject property is contributing to the Old Lucerne Local Historic District. 

 

HRPB Meeting Date: November 9, 2016 

  
 

Section 23.5-4k(3) Additional guidelines for new construction; visual compatibility   

 

All improvements to buildings, structures and appurtenances within a designated historic district shall 

be visually compatible. New buildings should take their design cues from the surrounding existing 

structures, using traditional or contemporary design standards and elements that relate to existing 

structures that surround them and within the historic district as a whole. Building design styles, 

whether contemporary or traditional, should be visually compatible with the existing structures in the 

district.   

 

A.   In approving or denying applications for certificates of appropriateness for new construction, the 

City shall also, at a minimum, consider the following additional guidelines which help to define visual 

compatibility: 

 

(1) The height of proposed buildings shall be visually compatible and in harmony with the 

height of existing buildings located within the historic district. 

Response: The proposed building is consistent with the height of other 2-story buildings 

surrounding the property, and is in harmony with the height of other historic properties 

in the district. 

 

(2) The relationship of the width of the building to the height of the front elevation shall be 

visually compatible and in harmony with the width and height of the front elevation of 

existing buildings located within the district. 

Response: The width and height of the front elevations of the proposed building is in scale 

with the surrounding properties. 

 

(3) The openings of any building within a historic district should be visually compatible and 

in harmony with the openings in buildings of a similar architectural style located within 

the historic district. The relationship of the width of the windows and doors to the height 



2 

 

of the windows and doors in a building shall be visually compatible with buildings within 

the district. 

Response: The proposed windows and doors are compatible in height and width with the 

typical windows and doors on the neighboring structures. 

 

(4) The relationship of solids to voids in the front facade of a building or structure shall be 

visually compatible and in harmony with the front facades of historic buildings or 

structures located within the historic district. A long, unbroken facade in a setting of 

existing narrow structures can be divided into smaller bays which will complement the 

visual setting and the streetscape. 

Response: The proposal avoids long expanses of unbroken façade, and the overall design 

and configuration complements the existing streetscape. 

 

(5) The relationship of a building to open space between it and adjoining buildings shall be 

visually compatible and in harmony with the relationship between buildings elsewhere 

within the district. 

Response: The proposed building adheres to the customary front, side, and rear setbacks 

within the district, and also within the current zoning code. 

 

(6) The relationship of entrance and porch projections to sidewalks of a building shall be 

visually compatible and in harmony with the prevalent architectural styles of entrances 

and porch projections on buildings and structures within the district. 

Response: The proposed design utilizes a 6’ garage door on the 3rd Ave North façade to 

replicate the placement of the original garage bay and to provide a sense of cohesion 

among other garage facades in the immediate surroundings. The front porch and entry of 

this accessory structure will face the rear of the primary structure, and is not directly in 

public line of sight.  

   

(7) The relationship of the materials, texture and color of the facade of a building shall be 

visually compatible and in harmony with the predominant materials used in the buildings 

and structures of a similar style located within the historic district. 

Response: The building will be concrete block finished with HardiPlank to replicate the 

primary structure. Although HardiPlank is not a commonly approved material in Lake 

Worth’s Historic Districts, the HRPB did approve the use of this material on the primary 

structure in 2012. In order to keep a unified and cohesive appearance for this property, 

HardiPlank is considered visually compatible.  

 

(8) The roof shape of a building or structure shall be visually compatible and in harmony with 

the roof shape of buildings or structures of a similar architectural style located within the 

historic district. 

Response: The hipped roof is compatible with the Frame Vernacular architectural style 

and the City as a whole. 

 

(9) Appurtenances of a building, such as walls, wrought iron, fences, evergreen, landscape 

masses and building facades, shall, if necessary, form cohesive walls of enclosures along 

a street to insure visual compatibility of the building to the buildings and places to which 

it is visually related. 



3 

 

Response: It is the opinion of Staff that the plans provided are consistent with this 

requirement. 

 

(10) The size and mass of a building in relation to open spaces, the windows, door openings, 

porches and balconies shall be visually compatible and in harmony with the buildings and 

places to which it is visually related. 

Response:  Although the new construction will be taller than the accessory garage being 

demolished, there is precedent for two-story structures in the immediate vicinity of 230 

North Palmway; including 230 N O Street and 231 N Lakeside Dr. It is the opinion of Staff 

that the new construction will be visually compatible. 

 

(11) A building shall be visually compatible and in harmony with the buildings and places to 

which it is visually related in its directional character: vertical, horizontal or non-

directional. 

Response: The Applicant has provided a streetscape showing the building in relation to 

those to either side of it, and across the street. The building’s height and massing are 

compatible with other residential and accessory buildings on the block. 

 

(12) The architectural style of a building shall be visually compatible with other buildings to 

which it is related in the historic district, but does not necessarily have to be in the same 

style of buildings in the district. New construction or additions to a building are 

encouraged to be appropriate to the style of the period in which it is created and not 

attempt to create a false sense of history.  

Response: The building is a designed in Coastal Florida style with elements of Frame 

Vernacular architecture.  The building is visually compatible with the district, but does not 

attempt to replicate any historic structures.  

 

(13) Landscaping shall be compatible with the architectural character and appearance of the 

structure and of other buildings located within the historic district. 

Response: The landscape plan will be reviewed by Staff at permitting. 

 

(14) In considering applications for certificates of appropriateness to install mechanical 

systems which affect the exterior of a building or structure visible from a public right-of-

way, the following criteria shall be considered: 

 

(a) Retain and repair, where possible, historic mechanical systems in their original 

location, where possible. 

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(b) New mechanical systems shall be placed on secondary facades only and shall not 

be placed on, nor be visible from, primary facades. 

Response: Staff will ensure that any mechanical systems for the new building 

meet this criterion. 

 

(c) New mechanical systems shall not damage, destroy or compromise the physical 

integrity of the structure and shall be installed so as to cause the least damage, 

invasion or visual obstruction to the structure's building materials, or to its 

significant historic, cultural or architectural features. 



4 

 

Response: Staff will ensure that any mechanical systems for the building meet 

this criterion. 

 

(15) The site should take into account the compatibility of landscaping, parking facilities, utility 

and service areas, walkways and appurtenances. These should be designated with the 

overall environment in mind and should be in keeping visually with related buildings and 

structures. 

Response: The proposed demolition of the existing garage structure does not take the 

applicant below an acceptable level of off street parking per Code requirements. All 

hardscape surfaces are compatible in the district. 

 

B.   In considering certificates of appropriateness for new buildings or structures which will have more 

than one primary facade, such as those on corner lots facing more than one street, the HRPB shall 

apply the visual compatibility standards to each primary facade.   

Response: The above criteria and responses apply to the primary façade facing the rear of the primary 

structure at 230 N Palmway and the public frontage facing north along 3rd Ave. North. 

 
 































EXISTING SINGLE
FAMILY RESIDENCE

PROPOSED NEW
COVERED ENTRY

PROPOSED
NEW ADDITION

PROPOSED
POOL

PROPOSED
WALKWAY

PROPOSED NEW
PERGOLA / TRELLIS

REQUIRED 10'
SITE TRIANGLE

PROPOSED
6' H. FENCE

PROPOSED
FENCE

3RD AVENUE NORTH

N
O

R
TH

 P
A

LM
 W

A
Y

LOT 7 BLK 38

LOT 9 BLK 38

LOT 8 BLK 38

EXISTING SIDEWALK

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK

135.0'

135.0'

50
.0

'50
.0

'

SITE PLAN

AS-1

designed

dateno.

drawn

revisions

checked

job no.
scale
date

project

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TI
A

L 
R

E
M

O
D

E
L 

FO
R

:

drawing

sheet

of

W
IS

E
M

A
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

300 Avenue of Champions
Suite 260

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33418

Phone 561.202.6990
Fax 561.296.2494
archstudiofl.com

Architecture

Planning

ARCHITECTURAL
Studio,Inc.

Scott Blakeslee Disher



3RD AVENUE NORTH NORTH PALM WAYALLEY

NORTH PALM WAY

NORTH O STREET

STREETSCAPE

A-1.0

designed

dateno.

drawn

revisions

checked

job no.
scale
date

project

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TI
A

L 
R

E
M

O
D

E
L 

FO
R

:

drawing

sheet

of

W
IS

E
M

A
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

300 Avenue of Champions
Suite 260

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33418

Phone 561.202.6990
Fax 561.296.2494
archstudiofl.com

Architecture

Planning

ARCHITECTURAL
Studio,Inc.

Scott Blakeslee Disher



BATH

OFFICE / LOFT
STORAGE

LAUNDRY

CABANA

GROSS AREA

GROSS AREA 800 SF

NON CONDITIONED AREAS

FIRST FLOOR
STORAGE 84 SF

84 SF

AIR CONDITIONED AREAS

FIRST FLOOR A/C
2ND. FLOOR LOFT /
OFFICE

445 SF

271 SF

716 SF

FIRST FLOOR /
LOFT PLAN

A-1

designed

dateno.

drawn

revisions

checked

job no.
scale
date

project

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TI
A

L 
R

E
M

O
D

E
L 

FO
R

:

drawing

sheet

of

W
IS

E
M

A
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

300 Avenue of Champions
Suite 260

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33418

Phone 561.202.6990
Fax 561.296.2494
archstudiofl.com

Architecture

Planning

ARCHITECTURAL
Studio,Inc.

Scott Blakeslee Disher



ELEVATIONS

A-2

designed

dateno.

drawn

revisions

checked

job no.
scale
date

project

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TI
A

L 
R

E
M

O
D

E
L 

FO
R

:

drawing

sheet

of

W
IS

E
M

A
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

300 Avenue of Champions
Suite 260

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33418

Phone 561.202.6990
Fax 561.296.2494
archstudiofl.com

Architecture

Planning

ARCHITECTURAL
Studio,Inc.

Scott Blakeslee Disher



HRPB Project #16-00100228 
230 North Palmway 
Comments dated 11/9/2016 
From Ginny Powell 
224 North Palmway 
 

First I want the board to know that I did not oppose the expansion of the principal structure on 

this property in 2012.  The expansion, while permitted, comes very close to my property and in 

fact the driveway received a variance to encroach into the required 5’ set back so that is within 

2’ of my property line.  It seemed fair and appropriate to allow for reasonable use and the 

house needed some major repairs.  At that time, the owners expressed interest in eventually 

converting the 250 sf garage into an office to which I had no objection thinking it would be a 

similar footprint or even slightly larger.  However, I was unaware of the magnitude of the 

proposed accessory structure especially the 2nd story and the pool.  While I disagree with the 

project as proposed, I offer some recommendations. 

Comments: 

1. The 2nd story will have aural and visual impact on my property – See Criteria (B) which 

city staff says there will be no impact on the adjacent property.  It will have a negative 

visual impact by its presence and invade my privacy -- it will directly overlook my 

primary work and recreational space.    I am an avid gardener and outdoor person and 

the privacy of this space is important to me.  I do not believe that a 2nd story is necessary 

to give the applicant reasonable use of their land especially if I lose reasonable use of 

my land.  I am aware of the 2nd story property located across the alley at 231 North 

Lakeside Drive.  However, there is no useable space behind this property and therefore 

there will be no impact to either property.  The comparison is not appropriate. 

 

2. I believe the code limit of 697 sf is adequate for a single story storage room, office 

space, laundry and half bath.  However, the board would need to grant a variance from 

the max bldg. coverage requirement so that a single story with a 697 sf footprint could 

be constructed.   

 

3. RE: proposed pool and hot tub.  Pools typically increase the frequency and use of a 

space along with an associated increase in the noise level from users.  Anyone including 

probably all of you would have a problem with a pool located this close to your private 

outdoor space.   A demonstration of this point is the property immediately east of me 

across the alley – close to 40’ away.  It has a pool and maybe be a rental as I have seen 

different vehicles and people there over time.  During the summer, there is endless 

noise, children screaming all day, adults partying, talking and playing music at night 



causing a negative aural impact.  Reporting this to code likely wouldn’t help as I doubt 

the volume exceeds the allowable decibel level.  Therefore, I am proposing that only a 

hot tub be constructed as part of the plan.  

 

4. Since staff has essentially agreed that this project is compliant, I’m concerned that you 

will approve as is.  I  respectfully request that you consider modifying/approving with 

the following conditions:       

a. Eliminate the 2nd story and replace with a single story as detailed in No. 2 above.  An 

alternative to that would be to (1) Replace 2nd story windows on west and south 

elevations with wood frames/false windows or with glass blocks that would allow for 

some light and or (2) Install a native plant hedge inside the south property line to 

screen the 2nd story from view.  The plants should be big enough to provide a 12’ 

screen within in 2 years.  Applicants will work with the city re: species, sizes and 

numbers to plant to meet this criteria.    

b. Add only a hot tub, not a pool. 

c. Add specific language that all storm water must be retaining on site.  This is 

especially critical due to the volume and velocity of water running off a metal roof. 

d. Any lighting added must be installed below the 6’ maximum fence height with a 

shield over the bulb to ensure that the light is directed downward. 

 

The historical cottages preserve a unique piece of LW’s history.  In the 9/21/16 meeting notes, 

Herman Robinson rightly calls attention to the beautiful new book “Cottages of LW” which 

highlights some of these treasures that make LW special.  I’m lucky to own one and I have 

spent 27 years restoring it, working hard to preserve its charm and keeping it in good shape.  I 

believe more recent transplants also love these homes, but they buy them and once they 

realize it is hard to live in that small space, the renovations and expansion begin.  I believe this 

is moving our city towards gentrification by upper class property owners who will replace the 

low to middle class owners who have lived in the city for a long time and were able to 

purchase their homes at lower prices years ago, but are now priced out of the market.  I 

believe this is detrimental to our city.    

 

Please put yourself in my shoes, picture yourself with your neighbors being able to see directly 

into your living, work and play space and otherwise invading your privacy aurally or visually.    

 

Thank you for your review and consideration of my recommendations.    

 

Ginny Powell 

 



 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 
Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  

 

MEMORANDUM DATE:   November 2, 2016 

 

AGENDA DATE:  November 9, 2016 

 

TO:   Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

RE:   1005 North Palmway 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 

 Department for Community Sustainability 

 

TITLE:  HRPB Project Number 16-00100215: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for an 

addition for the single-family structure located at 1005 North Palmway; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-298-0150. The 

subject property was constructed in 1940 and is a non-contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne 

Local Historic District. 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT:  Howard Perkins 

                          1005 N Palmway  

                          Lake Worth, FL 33460 

 

  

BACKGROUND:  

The property at 1005 N Palmway has a one-story Frame Vernacular single-family residence designed in 1940 

by Architect Geo. T. Porter for Mrs. Clara Chissell.  The property has public frontage on North Palmway to the 

south. Character defining features of the building include the recessed front porch with decorative porch 

columns, decorative cupola, brick chimney, ranch-style floor plan, and frame construction.  

 

The original architectural plans for the building are available in the City’s property files. Based on the 

information in the City’s property file, the building has undergone multiple changes over time including roof 

replacement, window replacement, enclosure of the original garage, vinyl siding, and an addition to the 

structure in 1996. Overall, the building retains a moderate degree of historic integrity of location, setting, 

materials, and design. 

 

REQUEST:  

The Applicant has submitted plans to remove the existing non-original, non-contributing 200 sq. ft. metal 

carport, and construct a new 240 sq. ft. garage addition on the rear, west façade of the existing house.  The 

Applicant has provided architectural plans for the building, including a site plan, floor plan, details, and 

elevations.  The scope of work for the addition is substantial in size, however the design of the proposed 

addition will match the existing structure in scale, design, and materials.  The overall effect on the front 

façade will be minimal, with the addition being located entirely behind the existing structure.  The new 

addition is proposed to be concrete masonry construction with vinyl siding to match the existing structure, 

and will have an asphalt shingle gable roof and aluminum windows and doors to match the existing house.  



HRPB PR No. 16-00100215 

1005 North Palmway 

COA Application – Addition 

Page 2 

 

Separately, the Applicant has also worked with Staff to remove the existing non-original awning style 

windows and install new aluminum single-hung windows, to closely replicate the original wood double-hung 

windows on the structure.  All of the original wood shutters will remain on the structure. 

 

The subject property is zoned Single-family Residential (SFR), and is subject to the development standards 

for this district in the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code and in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. An addition to a 

single-family residence is permitted, so long as it conforms to the required development criteria in §23.3-7 

of the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code. The following table includes some of the basic specifications for the 

proposed construction: 

 

Dimension Required by Code Existing or Proposed 

Lot size 7,500 sq. feet for single family 

 

6,750 sq. feet existing non-conforming 

Lot width 75’-0”  

 

50’-0” existing non-conforming 

Front (East) setback 20’0” 20’0”  existing 

Side setback 10% of lot width = 5’-0” North = 5.0’ existing and proposed, 

South = 4.4’ existing and proposed  

West = 7.6’ existing, 7.6’ proposed   

Rear (West) setback 15.0’ for primary building  30’-5” existing and proposed 

F.A.R.1 0.50 0.30 existing, 0.34 proposed 

Max. Building Coverage2 35% max. 35% proposed 

Impervious surface 55% max.  Appx. 54.6% proposed 

 

ANALYSIS:   

Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Consistency  

Overall, the proposed project is consistent with the development requirements in the City’s Zoning Code and 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

The property does have an existing Code Compliance issue regarding the paver driveway that was installed 

by the previous owner in the front yard without an approved COA or building permit.  The driveway as 

installed exceeds the total impervious surface allowed in the front yard, and the entire lot.  The Applicant 

has worked with Staff to propose a remedy to the unpermitted work, which is shown on the survey in 

Attachment 3.  The Applicant is proposing to remove a large portion of the pavers, and install a ribbon 

                                                           
1
 Floor area ratio:  A regulatory technique which relates to total developable site area and the size (square feet) of 

development permitted on a specific site.  A numeric rating assigned to each land use category  

that determines the total gross square feet of all buildings as measured from each building’s exterior walls based upon 

the actual land area of the parcel upon which the buildings are to be located.  Total gross square feet calculated using 

the assigned floor area ratio shall not include such features as parking lots or the first three (3) levels of parking 

structures, aerial pedestrian crossovers, open or partially enclosed plazas, or exterior pedestrian and vehicular 

circulation areas. 
2
 Building lot coverage: The area of a lot covered by the impervious surface associated with the footprint(s) of all 

buildings on a particular lot.  Structured parking garages are exempt from building lot coverage. 



HRPB PR No. 16-00100215 

1005 North Palmway 

COA Application – Addition 

Page 3 

 

driveway instead.  Final review and approval of this proposal can be granted at Staff level, and does not 

require Board approval.   

 

Historic Preservation 

Staff has reviewed the documentation and materials provided in this application and outlined the applicable 

guidelines and standards found in the City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance, detailed in Attachment 1 – 

Decision Criteria. 

 

It is the analysis of Staff that the project is fundamentally compatible with the review criteria set forth in the 

historic preservation regulations. The addition is proposed on a secondary elevation of the building, and will 

have a minimal visual impact on the building as viewed from North Palmway.  The addition is in scale with 

the massing and height of the existing structure, and utilizes a compatible design and detailing.  The design 

also utilizes compatible window and door spacing and design. 

 

Public Comment 

At the time of publication of the agenda, Staff has not received any public comment regarding this project.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONSISTENCY: 

The project, as proposed, is consistent with the following Comprehensive Plan goals and objectives 

concerning future land use and housing: 

 

Goal 1.4 Encourage preservation and rehabilitation of historic and natural resources and where appropriate 

restrict development that would damage or destroy these resources. (Objective 1.4.2) 

 

Objective 3.2.5:   To encourage the identification of historically significant housing, and to promote 

its preservation and rehabilitation as referenced by the Surveys of Historic Properties conducted for 

the City of Lake Worth. 

 

Policy 3.2.5.1:  Properties of special value for historic, architectural, cultural or aesthetic reasons will 

be restored and preserved through the enforcement of the City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance to 

the extent feasible. 

 

CONSEQUENT ACTION:   

Approve the application; approve the application with conditions; continue the hearing to a date certain to 

request additional information; or deny the application. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Staff recommends approval of the request for an addition to the existing single-family structure with the 

following conditions: 

 

1) The addition may be concrete masonry or frame construction.  An appropriate expansion joint shall 

be used between the existing structure and the proposed addition as needed in order to avoid 

damage to the existing building, subject to staff review at permitting. 



HRPB PR No. 16-00100215 

1005 North Palmway 

COA Application – Addition 

Page 4 

 

2) The existing structure shall be properly protected during construction so as not to incur damage from 

the addition.  Engineering drawings shall be required to show how the new roof and walls will tie into 

the existing structure. 

3) All windows and doors shall be aluminum, and shall not use reflective glass.  The header height of the 

new windows and doors should match that of the existing windows and doors on the rear of the 

structure if possible, subject to staff review at permitting. 

4) The new windows and doors shall have decorative trim installed, similar to the existing window and 

door trim on the structure. 

5) The decorative trim and vent detailing on the proposed garage addition shall closely replicate the 

size, shape, and scale of the trim and vent detailing on the existing structure, subject to staff review 

at permitting and inspection during construction.   

6) The soffit and fascia detailing on the proposed addition shall match the detailing on the existing 

structure. 

7) The siding may be vinyl, to match the existing siding on the house, or the siding may be wood, to 

replicate the wood siding existing beneath the vinyl siding.  If vinyl siding is used on the addition, the 

walls shall be constructed so that wood siding could be installed in the future, if the owner wishes to 

remove all of the non-original vinyl siding. 

 

POTENTIAL MOTION:   

 

I MOVE TO APPROVE HRPB 16-00100215: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the 

construction of an addition for the subject building located at 1005 North Palmway, with conditions as 

recommended by Staff, based upon the preponderance of competent substantial evidence. 

 

I MOVE TO DENY HRPB 16-00100215: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the 

construction of an addition for the subject building located at 1005 North Palmway because the Applicant 

has not established by a preponderance of the evidence that the application is in compliance with the City of 

Lake Worth Land Development Regulations Section 23.5-4, the Secretary of the interiors Standards for the 

Rehabilitation of Historic Properties, and the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Decision Criteria  

2. Application Photographs 

3. Survey 

4. Proposed Architectural Drawings  

5. Proposed Product Brochures 

6. Original Architectural Drawings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HRPB PR No. 16-00100215 

1005 North Palmway 

COA Application – Addition 

Page 5 

 

 

LOCATION MAP  

 

 

 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE: November 2, 2016 

 

TO: Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 

 Department of Community Sustainability 

 

SUBJECT:          HRPB Project Number 16-00100215: Consideration of a Certificate of 

Appropriateness (COA) for an addition for the single-family structure located at 1005 

N Palmway; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-298-0150.  The subject property was constructed 

in 1940 and is a non-contributing resource within the North East Lucerne Local 

Historic District.  

 

HRPB Meeting Date: November 9, 2016 

  
 

Per Section 23.5-4k(1) of the historic preservation ordinance, the Board shall use the 

following criteria in making a determination: 

 

A.   What is the effect of the proposed work on the landmark or the property upon which such work 

is to be done?   

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that the proposed work on the property located at 1005 North 

Palmway will have no adverse effect on the historic appearance or significance of the building. 

 

B.   What is the relationship between such work and other structures on the landmark site or other 

property in the historic district?   

Response: The proposed work will have no direct physical effect on any surrounding properties within 

the surrounding Northeast Lucerne Local Historic District.  

 

C.   To what extent will the historic, architectural, or archaeological significance, architectural style, 

design, arrangement, texture, materials and color of the landmark or the property be affected?    

Response: The Applicant is not proposing to replace any original materials on the building. It is the 

analysis of Staff that the proposed addition is compatible with the architectural style of the single-

family residence and will not adversely affect the historic integrity of the original structure. 

 

D.   Would denial of a certificate of appropriateness deprive the property owner of reasonable 

beneficial use of his property?  

Response: No, the denial of this COA as submitted does not prevent the Applicant from potentially 

proposing other alterations to the home, nor would it make the building uninhabitable. 

 

E.   Are the applicant's plans technically feasible and capable of being carried out within a reasonable 

time?  

Response: Yes. 

 



2 

 

F.   Do the plans satisfy the applicable portions of the general criteria contained in the United States 

Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation then in effect or as they may be revised from 

time to time? The current version of the Secretary's Guidelines provides as follows: 

 

(1)   A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that requires minimal 

change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment.   

 Response: No change to the use of the property is proposed. 

 

(2)   This historic character of the property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic 

materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided.   

Response: The Applicant is not removing any historic materials from the property.  The proposed 

changes will not alter the main street-facing elevation, or other features and spaces that characterize 

this property.  The basic shape and form of the structure will not be affected by the addition. 

 

(3)   Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place and use. Changes that 

create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or architectural 

elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken.  

Response: It is the opinion of Staff that the addition will be compatible with the original Frame 

Vernacular structure and will not create a false sense of historical development.  

 

(4) Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic significance in their 

own right shall be retained and preserved.    

Response: The historically significant features of the building are being retained. 

 

(5)   Distinctive features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that 

characterize a historic property shall be preserved.   

Response: It is the opinion of Staff that no distinctive features, finishes, or examples of craftsmanship 

that characterize the property are being adversely affected by the scope of work proposed.  

 

(6)   Deteriorated architectural features shall be repaired rather than replaced, wherever possible. In 

the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 

composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities.  

 

Repair or replacement of missing architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of 

features, substantiated by historical, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs 

or because the different architectural elements from other buildings or structures happen to be 

available for relocation.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(7)   Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials, 

shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the 

gentlest means possible.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(8)   Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and preserved. If such 

resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 



3 

 

(9)   New additions, exterior alterations or related new construction shall not destroy historic 

materials that characterize the property. The new construction shall be differentiated from the old 

and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic 

integrity of the property and its environment.   

Response: The proposed new addition meet this criterion.  The addition is compatible in size, massing, 

and scale.  The footprint, roof shape, and location will make the addition easily distinguished from the 

original structure. 

 

(10)   New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner 

that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic building and its 

environment would be unimpaired.   

Response: The proposed addition could be removed at a later date, with some changes to the main 

structure.   

 

G.   What are the effects of the requested change on those elements or features of the structure which 

served as the basis for its designation and will the requested changes cause the least possible adverse 

effect on those elements or features?   

Response: It is the opinion of Staff that the historic character of the property would not be adversely 

affected by the proposed project as submitted by the Applicant, as outlined above. 

 

Section 23.5-4k(2). Additional guidelines for alterations. 

 

In approving or denying applications for certificates of appropriateness for alterations, the HRPB shall 

also consider the following additional guidelines:  

 

A. Is every reasonable effort being made to provide a compatible use for a property that requires 

minimal alteration of the building, structure or site and its environment, or to use the property for its 

originally intended purpose?  

Response: No change to the use of the property is proposed.  

 

B. Are the distinguishing original qualities or character of a building, structure or site and its 

environment being destroyed? The removal or alteration of any historic material or distinctive 

architectural features shall be avoided whenever possible.  

Response: No. 

 

C. When a certificate of appropriateness is requested to replace windows or doors, the HRPB shall 

permit the property owner's original design when the HRPB's alternative design would result in an 

increase in cost of thirty (30) percent above the owner's original cost. The owner shall be required to 

demonstrate to the HRPB that:  

(1) The work to be performed will conform to the original door and window openings of the structure; 

and 

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(2) That the replacement windows or doors with less expensive materials will achieve a savings in 

excess of thirty (30) percent over historically compatible materials otherwise required by this code.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

























































 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 
Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  
 

 
MEMORANDUM DATE:   November 2, 2016 

 

AGENDA DATE:  November 9, 2016 

 

TO:   Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

RE:   1401 South Lakeside Drive 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 

 Department for Community Sustainability 

 

TITLE:  HRPB Project Number 16-00100234: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for window 

and door replacement for the single-family structure located at 1401 South Lakeside Drive; PCN# 3843442701-

0770080.  The subject property was constructed in 1953 and is a non-contributing resource within the South Palm 

Park Local Historic District. 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT:    Christine Harasz and Rennie Newmark 

                                          1401 South Lakeside Drive 

                             Lake Worth, FL 33460 

 

BACKGROUND:  

The single-family structure at 1401 South Lakeside Drive was designed by architect Agnes Ballard in a Mid-

Century Masonry Vernacular style, and was constructed in 1953.  The structure utilizes concrete masonry 

construction with a smooth stucco finish, and has decorative brickwork and planter beds.  Ms. Ballard is noted for 

being the first female registered architect in Florida, and designed several structures in Lake Worth.   

 

The property has public frontage on three sides, South Lakeside Drive to the east, South Palmway to the west, 

and 14th Avenue South to the north.  The structure was originally constructed with the front facing South 

Palmway, but was later changed so that the front door faces South Lakeside Drive.  The address was also changed 

from 1402 South Palmway to 1401 South Lakeside Drive. 

 

The original architectural plans for the building are available in the City’s property files.  Based on the information 

in the property file, many exterior alterations have occurred over time, including roof replacement from flat 

white concrete tile to dimensional asphalt shingle, enclosure of the carport, a bathroom addition, enclosure of 

the porch, and window replacement.  The original architectural drawings indicate that the structure had primarily 

metal casement windows, and jalousie windows in the porch area, however the existing windows are aluminum 

awnings and the existing doors are full-light jalousie doors.  Overall, the building retains a moderate degree of 

historic integrity of location, setting, materials, and design. 

 

REQUEST:  

In June 2016, Staff issued an administrative approval for COA#16-00100140, included as Attachment 3, to allow 

the replacement of (14) windows, (1) existing door, and the installation of (1) new door.  The approval was issued 

after several meetings between Staff and the Applicant and discussion over the proposed alterations, and 



HRPB No. 16-00100234 

1401 South Lakeside Dr 

COA Application – Window Replacement 

Page 2 

 

included (6) conditions of approval.  The Applicant proceeded with ordering and commencing installation of 

windows, and on September 9, 2016, the Building Department performed an in-progress inspection and noticed 

that the windows installed were not in compliance with the Conditions of Approval in the Certificate of 

Appropriateness letter. 

 

The Applicant, as defined in the Justification Statement included as Attachment #4, is now requesting a 

Certificate of Appropriateness as follows: 

1) Replace the existing full-light jalousie front door with a new full-light white aluminum single French door. 

2) In window openings #2 and #3 on the east elevation (53”x48”), install a pair of white aluminum casement 

windows. 

3) In window openings #1 and #4 on the east elevation, and openings #1 and #3 on the south elevation 

(73”x48”), install a pair of square 37”x38” white aluminum casement windows, and a fixed 37”x12” 

picture window above. 

4) In window opening #2 on the south elevation, and windows openings #2, #3, #4, and #5 on the north 

elevation, install single white aluminum casement windows. 

5) On the west elevation, in opening #1, install a new full-light white aluminum single French door, and in 

opening #2, a new single white aluminum casement window. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONSISTENCY: 

It is the analysis of Staff that the project, as proposed, is not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan goals and 

objectives concerning historic preservation and housing due to the fact that the Applicant is proposing a change 

that will have an adverse effect on the historic integrity of the property.  Specifically, the request is in conflict 

with these objectives: 

 

Goal 1.4 Encourage preservation and rehabilitation of historic and natural resources and where appropriate 

restrict development that would damage or destroy these resources. (Objective 1.4.2) 

 

Objective 3.2.5:   To encourage the identification of historically significant housing, and to promote its 

preservation and rehabilitation as referenced by the Surveys of Historic Properties conducted for the City 

of Lake Worth. 

 

Policy 3.2.5.1:  Properties of special value for historic, architectural, cultural or aesthetic reasons will be 

restored and preserved through the enforcement of the City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance to the 

extent feasible. 

 

ANALYSIS:   

Zoning 

The proposed alterations are not in conflict with the development requirements in the City’s Zoning Code.   

 

Historic Preservation 

Staff has reviewed the documentation and materials provided in this application and outlined the applicable 

guidelines and standards found in the City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance, detailed in Attachment 1 – Decision 

Criteria. 

 

The National Park Service and Secretary of the Interior’s Standards have very specific criteria regarding 

replacement of historic materials.  Specifically, Standards 2, 5, and 6 apply in this situation: 

 

Standard 2 - The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive 

materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that characterize a property will be avoided. 



HRPB No. 16-00100234 

1401 South Lakeside Dr 

COA Application – Window Replacement 

Page 3 

 

 

Standard 5 - Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship 

that characterize a property will be preserved. 

 

Standard 6 - Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of 

deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will match the old in design, color, 

texture, and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features will be substantiated by documentary 

and physical evidence. 

 

It is the analysis of Staff that the project as proposed is not compatible with the review criteria set forth in the 

City’s Land Development Regulations Section 23.5-4, the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and the Secretary of the 

Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation. 

 

According to the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards, distinctive materials that characterize a property shall be 

preserved.  The design and pattern of the windows is an important character defining feature of the property.  

The Staff COA approval issued in June 2016 complies with the Standards and the Code, and allows for compatible 

casement style windows with horizontal muntin patterns to replicate the metal casement windows on the original 

architectural drawings.  Metal casement windows with horizontal divided lights were utilized heavily in the City in 

the early 1950’s and are compatible with this Mid-Century Masonry Vernacular structure.  In fact, this structure 

utilized the same construction drawings as the structure located at 830 South Lakeside Drive, which had several 

original metal casement windows remaining until the windows were replaced in 2016 with compatible divided 

light casement and horizontal roller windows. 

 

The Applicant’s request to install a pair of square 37”x38” white aluminum casement windows, and a fixed 

37”x12” picture window above in window openings #1 and #4 on the east elevation, and openings #1 and #3 on 

the south elevation (73”x48” total opening) is not in compliance with the Standards and the Code.  This structure 

did not have square windows with fixed transoms above, and that window configuration was not utilized in the 

Mid-Century Masonry Vernacular architecture found in Lake Worth.  Staff recommends that (2) 8-light casement 

windows be installed in the 73”x48” openings.  

 

Public Comment 

At the time of publication of this report, Staff has not received any public comment regarding this project.  

 

CONSEQUENT ACTION:   

Approve the application; approve the application with conditions; continue the hearing to a date certain to 

request additional information; or deny the application. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

The new proposal for replacement windows and doors does not meet the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 

Rehabilitation, does not meet the criteria set forth in the City of Lake Worth Land Development Regulations 

§23.5-4(k), and will have an adverse effect on the integrity and character of the property.  Staff recommends that 

the Board uphold the Conditions of Approval as stated in the Staff approved COA#16-00100140, as follows: 

 

1) The (2) east facing 53”x48” 3-pane awning windows shall be replaced with an even 1/3-1/3-1/3 horizontal 

roller window with exterior raised applied triangular muntins creating 4 horizontal lights in each panel, 12 

lights overall. 

2) Staff recommends that the windows shall have a clear anodized or silver mill finish. 

3) Reflective glass shall not be used.  All muntin patterns shall be installed per the stamped elevation 

drawings, and shall be created using exterior raised applied triangular muntins.  No flat or internal 

muntins shall be permitted. 



HRPB No. 16-00100234 

1401 South Lakeside Dr 

COA Application – Window Replacement 

Page 4 

 

4) Any paired windows shall be connected by a mullion not to exceed 1” in width, as required. 

5) The windows shall be replaced in the existing openings, and the existing openings shall not be made 

smaller by building in the framing. 

6) All conditions shall be met as noted and outlined on the submittal drawings (included as Attachment 3).  

These drawings shall accompany all permit documents at the time of building permit inspection. 

 

POTENTIAL MOTIONS:   

I MOVE TO APPROVE HRPB 16-00100234: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for window and 

door replacement for the subject building located at 1401 North Lakeside Drive, with the conditions as 

recommended by Staff, based upon the preponderance of competent substantial evidence, and pursuant to the 

City of Lake Worth Land Development Regulations Section 23.5-4. 

 

I MOVE TO DENY HRPB 16-00100234: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for window and 

door replacement for the subject building located at 1401 North Lakeside Drive because the Applicant has not 

established by a preponderance of the competent substantial evidence that the application is in compliance with 

the City of Lake Worth Land Development Regulations Section 23.5-4, the Secretary of the interiors Standards for 

the Rehabilitation of Historic Properties, and the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Decision Criteria 

2. Photographs 

3. Staff Approved COA#16-00100140 

4. Applicant’s Justification Statement  

5. Original Architectural Drawings 

 

LOCATION MAP 
 

  
 



 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE: November 3, 2016 

 

TO: Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Preservation Planning Coordinator 

 Department of Community Sustainability 

 

SUBJECT:  HRPB Project Number 16-00100234: Consideration of a Certificate of 

Appropriateness (COA) for window and door replacement for the single-family 

structure located at 1401 South Lakeside Drive; PCN# 38-43-44-27-01-077-0080.  

The subject property was constructed in 1953 and is a non-contributing resource 

within the South Palm Park Local Historic District. 

 

HRPB Meeting Date: November 9, 2016 

  
 

Per Section 23.5-4k (1) of the historic preservation ordinance, the Board shall use the 

following criteria in making a determination: 

 

A.   What is the effect of the proposed work on the landmark or the property upon which such work 

is to be done?   

Response: It is the opinion of Staff that the work proposed would have an adverse effect on the 

historic appearance of the building, and is not fully compatible with the design or style. 

 

B.   What is the relationship between such work and other structures on the landmark site or other 

property in the historic district?   

Response: The proposed work will have no direct physical effect on any surrounding properties within 

the surrounding South Palm Park Local Historic District, however it will have an indirect visual effect 

on the district. 

 

C.   To what extent will the historic, architectural, or archaeological significance, architectural style, 

design, arrangement, texture, materials and color of the landmark or the property be affected?    

Response: The Applicant is proposing work that is not compatible with the architectural design and 

detailing of the building by removing the historic aluminum awning windows and replacing them with 

white aluminum casements without the appropriate muntin patterns.  The Applicant is also proposing 

to alter the configuration and size of the windows. 

 

D.   Would denial of a certificate of appropriateness deprive the property owner of reasonable 

beneficial use of his property?  

Response: No, the denial of this COA as submitted does not prevent the Applicant from potentially 

proposing other alterations to the structure, nor would it make the building uninhabitable. 

 

E.   Are the applicant's plans technically feasible and capable of being carried out within a reasonable 

time?  

Response: Yes. 

 



F.   Do the plans satisfy the applicable portions of the general criteria contained in the United States 

Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation then in effect or as they may be revised from 

time to time? The current version of the Secretary's Guidelines provides as follows: 

 

(1)   A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that requires minimal 

change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment.   

 Response: No change to the use of the property is proposed. 

 

(2)   This historic character of the property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic 

materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided.   

Response: The Applicant is proposing to remove non-original windows, and install non-compatible 

replacement windows. 

 

(3)   Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place and use. Changes that 

create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or architectural 

elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(4) Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic significance in their 

own right shall be retained and preserved.    

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(5)   Distinctive features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that 

characterize a historic property shall be preserved.   

Response: The original window design is an example of craftsmanship that characterizes not only this 

structure, but also the time period and architectural style in general. 

 

(6)   Deteriorated architectural features shall be repaired rather than replaced, wherever possible. In 

the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 

composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities.  

Response: The proposed window replacement does not match the original windows or the existing 

non-original windows in style, composition, design, or color.   

 

Repair or replacement of missing architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of 

features, substantiated by historical, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs 

or because the different architectural elements from other buildings or structures happen to be 

available for relocation.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(7)   Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials, 

shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the 

gentlest means possible.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(8)   Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and preserved. If such 

resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(9)   New additions, exterior alterations or related new construction shall not destroy historic 

materials that characterize the property. The new construction shall be differentiated from the old 



and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale and architectural features to protect the historic 

integrity of the property and its environment.   

Response: The proposed windows are not compatible with the original window designs that 

characterize the property and the Mid-Century Masonry Vernacular architectural style. 

 

(10)   New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such manner 

that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic building and its 

environment would be unimpaired.   

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

G.   What are the effects of the requested change on those elements or features of the structure which 

served as the basis for its designation and will the requested changes cause the least possible adverse 

effect on those elements or features?   

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that the historic character of the property would be adversely 

affected by the proposed project as submitted by the Applicant, as outlined above.  The requested 

exterior alterations do not represent the least possible adverse effect on the property.  There is an 

alternate option for replacement windows that more closely replicate the original historic windows. 

 

Section 23.5-4k (2). Additional guidelines for alterations. 

 

In approving or denying applications for certificates of appropriateness for alterations, the HRPB shall 

also consider the following additional guidelines:  

 

A. Is every reasonable effort being made to provide a compatible use for a property that requires 

minimal alteration of the building, structure or site and its environment, or to use the property for its 

originally intended purpose?  

Response: No change to the use of the property is proposed.  

 

B. Are the distinguishing original qualities or character of a building, structure or site and its 

environment being destroyed? The removal or alteration of any historic material or distinctive 

architectural features shall be avoided whenever possible.  

Response: The replacement windows should replicate the existing originals as closely as possible. 

 

C. When a certificate of appropriateness is requested to replace windows or doors, the HRPB shall 

permit the property owner's original design when the HRPB's alternative design would result in an 

increase in cost of thirty (30) percent above the owner's original cost. The owner shall be required to 

demonstrate to the HRPB that:  

(1) The work to be performed will conform to the original window openings of the structure; and 

Response: The applicant meets this criteria.  

 

(2) That the replacement windows or doors with less expensive materials will achieve a savings in 

excess of thirty (30) percent over historically compatible materials otherwise required by this code.  

Response: Staff must defer to the applicant. 

















Christine Harasz

1401 S. Lakeside Drive

LakeWorth FL 33460

Ms. Aimee Sunny

Preservation Planning Coordinator
City of Lake Worth

Date of Revision Request October3,2O16
Permit no. 16-2383

We request a revised COA as follows:

1 ' City Staff specified horizontal roller windows for 2 windows, East #2 and #3 (S3 x 4g). We
request approval of installation of paired casements windows, divided by a mullion, on East # 2
and #3.

At the pre-application meeting on May 5, 2016, City staff indicated that horizontal rollers were not
preferred and would not be approved. C i t y Staff comments were that horizontal rollers left a gap
between the windows and have an "industrial' look. we amended our plan by specifying all
casement windows for the project. Building and lnstallation plans were submitted and reviewed and
the permit was approved with the specifications submitted. We installed the windows as perthe
approved permit issued by the building department. Subsequently, it has become apparent that the
building permit and the Historic review comments do not align and that the windows we installed do
not meet the Historic coA.

We have already installed these windows and have now been told they don't conform to the original
historic permit, even after being issued a building permit for them, we have evaluated the feasibility to
remove and replace them and find that the cost to do so is impracticable. At this point, it is
unreasonable to ask us to uninstall windows and replace windows that are fully functioning and match
the approved building permit.

According to the interactive map on the City's website, 1401 S Lakeside drive is not a contributing
structure. Window replacement styles at this property will not impact the integrity of the historic
district.



Windows as installed:

East Windows #2 and #3; P|CT 740 double casement windows with mullions



2. city staff requires muntin patterns on every window in configurations of 6, 8, i 2- lights.
reconsideration and elimination of this

According to standard architectural guidelines, muntins are appropriate for Colonial (1600s-present),

Victorian (1 83G1 900) and Craftsman Style (1900's-1940's) architecture. These styles are inherently
vertical in proportion and feature architectural details such as: 2 or more stories, steep-pitched
roofs, large open porches, dormers, shutters, ornamentation, shingle exteriors, broad gables and
wide overhanging eaves.

1401 S. Lakeside Drive is clearly not Victorian, Colonial or Craftsman-but rather a classic
Midcentury Modern Ranch (1 950's - present). The one-story house was built in 1952, with a shallow
pitched roof, and a horizontal form.

The windows on this house have never had square six, eight or twelve-light configurations so there
appears to be no precedent for this request. The feature of the windows has always been large glass

area with clean, minimal horizontal lines.

We are installing inside-mount plantation shutters on the East and South windows which will give

the windows the horizontal lines that are characteristic for windows in Midcentury Modern houses.

The addition of muntins will create a "traffic jam" of lines and a very "busy" look.

Example COA muntins:

73 x 48 window

3l

Example of plantataon shutters/horizontal line effect:

bL - ,!':i iL

-- -- 
-rE .ra, -I t- IIr, E-aI'I i'I I- 

'Irill ,vt7t [E Elr
l-- 

--J 
t-- 

--JI r rl rrrtl
I :itr Ib- -l
IIIIII
EE 

-I 
I- I!I!E

llEE r- 
--l--E|EI I[-a 
-E 

E--



ln summary, we are not willing to spend money on materials and labor on something that:
e does not add to the support, operation, durability or use of the windows;
. may in fact be a liability in a high wind since muntins are not part of the structure of the

window; they are essentially "glued" on;
o will render the windows diff icult to clean and maintain;
o will unnecessarily contribute to increased project costs;
o the house is not a contributing structure and we should not be held to a "historical" window

style that was not significant.

We wish to "restore" our home rather than "remodel" it. We agree with the accepted architectural
standards as cited and detailed in the enclosed Exhibit A. We do not think any muntins in any
configuration would be an appropriate aesthetic for this project-ou11952 Midcentury Modern Ranch

house.

Supporting Documentation:
Exhibit A: Character Defining Windows by architect Lynn Hopkins

4l



3. Approve revised window product and instaltation on 4 windows (all 73x4g) East #1, #4 &
South #1, #3, with double PGT 740 casement windows (37 x 38), topped with pGT 720
Winguard (fiied) picture window (37 x 12) with horazontal and vertical mullions. lllustration
below:

Note: the above image has a different window operation than we specifll; we will install tour FIXED
picture windows and the bottom 2 casement windows (37x38) may be opened.

Suooorting documentation:
Exhibit B: Detailed construction drawing showing revised installation specifications using a PGT

Casement CA740, topped by a PGT PW720 Winguard Picture window, with 1 vertical mullion and one
horizontal mullion

Exhibit C: Window lmages, Specifications, NOA, lnstallation Details

Exhibit D: Window elevations: East and South

J

-t

.L't'-
rsi
E'! :,

Fi
,l

I

e(
4..

,-

l

ffi
i,

i

L

iI

" -:1



a\
o','r{

't'
Qonrog

Applicant: Christine Harasz

Buttofi,lc DtvtstoN
DEPARTMENT FoR CoMMUNtry SusralNAgtLlry

Cry oF LA(E WoRTH

1900 2"oAV€NUE NoRrH

LA(E WoRrH, FL3346l
s61.585.1647

Rtvtstotrt SuerurTeL FoRM

Two (2) sets of documents ate tequired for submittal

Date. oct 3.2016 Phsng S; 561402-2101

permit #. 1e2383

Brief description: Review and spprcve €vision on l€ms 1 and 3 f.Dm the coA

OFFICE USE / APPROVALS ONLY

oAppRO\rED \I./ COMNIENTS
DATE: =.-- BY:

oAPPRO\rED W/ COMMENTS
DATE: _- !t;

oAPPRO\rED W/ COMMENTS
DATE: BY:

JOb Address: 140, S Lakeside Drive

Description: Check all that apply
aResidential oComme rcia.l '
oBuilding oMechanical
oElectrical oplumbing
ozorung nFire

BUILDING:
OAPPRO\'ED
DDENIED

MECFIANICAL:
oAppRO\rED
oDENIED

ELECTRICAI:
trAPPRO\.ED
oDENIED

PLUMBING:
trAPpRO'v'ED
oDENIED

ZONING:
oAppROVED
DDENIED

FIRE:
oAppROVED
trDENIED

oAPPRO\rED W/
DATE:

COMMENTS
BY:

DAPPRO\aEDW COMMENTS
DATE: -- !f;
oAPPROVED W/ COMMENTS
DATE: -_- BY:

Approve alismate window insbllation for East t, 4 and South 1 and 3

Suppoding documontatjon attached.

Processed by;

",-.1,11,r.?:,'t,:l 
J Department rorcommunrtysustainabirity

Lrry or Lare worth | 19@ 2!Avenue North I rake worrh, FL 3j451



DEPAnTmEilT for COlllftlUillTY SUSTATI{ABltlil
P[Al{ l{ I t{G, 20il I ilo, AilD Ht SToR! C pnESERvATt 0t{

I 900 2d Avo Jlorth . toke Worrh, florido 33{61 ' pt0n0: 561-'t&l6tI

DATE3 o6l@,lz0ti

APPtlCArTs ChrisHneHarasz
!lO1 S lakeslde Drlve
[.ke Worth, Ft 33tl6o

PROIECT: COAn6.01mLO: Certlfcate of Apptoptlateness (COA! for wlndow and door replacement for
the subject property located at 1o1 south lakeslde Drlve; FcNfl3t-4344-27-o1-024-oo1o. The
subfect prcperty ls a nontontrlbutlng resoure whhln the South Paln Park tocal Hlstoric District.

On May 26, 2016, the otulsion ofPlannln& zonln& and Hlstork Pres€rvation received a COA application br window
and door replacement for the slngle-famlty structure located at 1401 South lateslde Drhr€. The applicatlon
proposes to replace (14) exlstlng awnint windows wlth cas€ment wlndoriE, and ,Eplace (1, wlndow wlth (11full llte
French door, and r€place (11 existint door with a new full ltte French door, per the plans and documentation
submitted. rhe completed coA application was submltted prlor to the bulldlng permlt appllcatlon.

prot €s the request as described in the COA appllcatlon, with the bllowlu condlUom:
The (2) cert fadng 53"x4tr 3-pane awnlng wtndows shalt be replaced wlth .n even f:t-V3-U3 horizontal
rolhr wlndow wlth exterlor rahed applled trlangular muntins creatirg 4 horizontal lf,hts ln each panel, 12
lfhts overall.
Staff rEcommends that the wlndows shall hare a dear anodlzed or sihrer mlllffnlsh.
Reflectlve glass shall not be used. Allmuntin pattems shellb€ installed p€rthe stamped elevation drawings,
and shall be created usinS erterior raised applled triangular muntins. No flat or internal muntins shall be
permltted.

4l Any palred windows shall be connected by a mulllon not to erce€d f in width, as rrquired.
5! The windows shall be replaced in the existint openings, and the existing openings shall not be made smaller

by building in the framlng.
6) All condftlons shall be met as noted and outllned on the submlttal dowlngs. These drawlngs shall

accompany all permlt documents at the time of buildint permit inspec0on.

wl$ these condltlons, the proFct is consistent srfth the requlrements of the hlstorlc pr€servation ordlnance and
wlll have no advErse physlcalorvlsualeffect on the property or the surrourdlu hlstorlcdistricl. Ihis approvaldoes
not lndud! any charqcs to the structure that are not speciftcally stated heriln. Thls letter only cons$tutes an
approml of compllance wlth th€ review procesi br erterior changes to a propeity wlthin a local historic dlstrkt as
deffned In City of Lake Worth Municipal Code 923,5-{. Thls approval does not exempt the appllcant ftom complylng
whh the bulldlng code and zonlng ordinance of the Oty of Lake Worth concemlnt wlndow'inst llation.
t{o clranges shallbe mad€ to the information on thls approved applicatbn thatcorld in any,ray consthute a change
ln the aenhetlc chancter of the project wlthout approval of staffor the Hlstork Resourcei preservaflon Board. No
additlonal chanFs to the structure shall be made whhout further approvals,

Pleas€ be advlsed the certlflcate of Approprlateness authorlzcd hereln shall be null and vold unless constructbn.
has commenced and ls proceeding within one (1) year from the staff approval datc.

0i, rrn. A,^-,*rr
Aimee N. Sunny, Pr€seration plannlnt Coordlnator
DMslon of Plannln& Zonln& and Hlstorlc preservatlon
DepaTtment for communlty Sustainablllty



!it\$o$N

- tl'"lr
IJ

1\?lrl}
H

 r#[flq
9r$1sxdNol

T0sldrlL.{

r

a,ffi

2ot-trl
JIrl
eagF

.,

ZE

,,:,..., .,. -., :-.

{rAJJnF
.2sNslI.tl

.l

s8+f;xF
S

l'{a)B
I



_9@
l$

h6,urP$N

IitrE

ffi
t-tuIultd

zoI-,E
I

F
I

E
I

E
)

aat)

HDo.A

t<H
8u

$9s

E
3n

ti



I'

illr. 
I

E
$l

HnE
il

-l-'laolrtl.l-thl
I

rtl
>

l
8l=

l
rlF

I
d. 

l

olzl

L]lr

\ox\o

E
iil

I

{?a

t,

ri,l
I

l-rI

zoFl!-]E
]

F7lrlou)



s-
l T (D L F

_ 7 t

1 (^
t

{ (-
f,, -t E
I rl o-
l

ol rl t{

N
ii

l*
 if

r
F

5o

f$
E

i
N

(, )t
=

.{ LO D
-

O
U

\

-L
E

: e IA

? + o 1,

=
il

=
o :a -.
9

L

o 9 |o a 7 (o
r

zl t/

E
xh

ib
it 

A

a x F
r o

o 9 \N (o 3 o +
!



trffi
Item Description

(x,Ot CATO WNGUARD CA SERIES 740
(r.00)

Conf guration: 37.X38.375,23,1/2' FL,W,HNG LT,WASHABLE,CL,T/8
CHARCOAL.DURASEAL,.,.x.

C€rtifi cation Type: MlArtll
Frame Typ€: .sFLANGE
Will a Ass6mbly Tub6 Be Used: NO
Hinge Typ€r WASHABLE
Size Code: 23.0000
Actual She: 37 X 38 3/8
Wood Frame Opening: 36 1/4 X 37 5/8
Frame Color: White
Glass Famity: Laminaled lnsuhting
lnterlayer Type: PVB090
Glass: 7/8" LIG (1/8 AN - 7/16 AIR -5/16 Ai.l/AN
Low E: NONE
Glass Spacer Typs: oS
Screen Type: 1816 Cha,coal
Stainless St€€l Package: N
Anchor Plate: N
Decralite: N
PositiveDesignPressure: 70.0000
PANumber: FL245
CondensationResistance:'19.0000
SolarHeatcainCo€tr: 0.5000
VTCOG: 0.8000

PO#:

Job I.LE:JEFF'1401LAK

Job Addrq!.:56 1-4603E51

Ouote # 510650

Saba Pealon:J63s€ Content

Line #

Locadon:

Conllguration:,49.625,wHlTE,.5FLANGE,SERlES 700,ASSYTUBE

Producl Family Series: 700-0000
Frame Type: .sFLANGE
Lengthi 49.6250
Packaging Options: N

Customer PIA JESSE

PALM BEACH, FL

Fax#

Line Pricing

$565.80

LIG,NO GRIO,X,X,STANDARD,1816

NOA Selection: 1 629.21
Unit Configuration: X
Hinge Side: LEFT
Siz6 Selection: COMMODIry
Si?e Ref: TTT
Rough Masonry Opening: 37 3/4 x 38 3/8
Egress opening: 23 1/2 x 32 3/8 (5.283 SOFT)
Does unit ne€d to m€€t Turtlo Code: NO
Ghss Type: 'll8' - 5/16'
Argon Gas: NONE
Glass Color CLEAR
Privacy Glass: NONE
cnd Typ€: NO Grid
Handl€ Typ€: STD
Anchor Group: C.CA.6.7
Boxing Options: None
CAR#:16{629.21
NegativeoesignPressure: 90.0000
Energystar NONE
UF: 0.7600
VT: 0.5300

Ext Price
$565.E0

S.ll Price
s24.76

Pan Sebclion: ASSYTUBE
Size Selection: CUSTOM
Frame Color: W

Ext Price
$1,988.56

Quantity

Ord.r.d:
1.00

Location:

OOO2 MULL MULL BARS
(3.00)

l{o1.3:

O.d6r.d:
4.00

Note3:

Order.d:
8.00

Ouote # 51065{)

Print Date 9,/2012016

Page 1 ol 3

Customer Proposal - PGT Windows

ShipTo: BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE-WEST PALM

Account#: A02 1 76

3661 W ELUE HERON BLVO 012'IOOI
RIVIERA BEACH, FL 33404-4901
Phone#

0003
(2.00)

PW72O PVW2O WINGUARD PICTURE WINDOW

Ext Prica
$99.04

56llPrice
$248.57



Contrguraiion: 37.X12.25.112' FL.W.'l 1/16 TLIG,CL,OUTSIDE GtZ,NO GRID,SS PACKAGE,-,.x.

-

Certif cation Typ€: MIAMI
Frame Type: .5FLANGE
Size R€f: TTT
Height 12.2500
Rough Masonry Opening 37 314 X 12 114
Frame Color: White
Glass Family: Laminated lnsulaling
lntedayer Type: PV8090
Glass: 1-1116" LIG (3/16 TMP-7/16AlR-7/16

AN/HS
Low E: NONE
Glass Spacer Type: DS
Stainl€ss Steel Package: Y
Oecralito: N
PositivEDesignPr6ssure: 80.0000
PANumber: FL243
CondensationResistance: t 8.0000
SolarHsatcainCo€ff: 0.6200
WCOG: 0.7800

NOA Sehction: 1m629.14
Size Selection: CUSTOM
Wdth:37.0000
Aalual Size: 37 X 12 114
Wood F.ame Opening: 36 114 X 11 112
Ooes unit need to n€gt Turtle Code: NO
Tempered Location: UNIT
Argon Gas: NONE
Glass Color: CLEAR
Privscy Glass: NONE
Grid Type: NO G.id
Boxing Options: Nono
CAR#:1m629.14
Nogativ€OesignPrgssur€: E0.0000
Enorsystar: NONE
UF:0.5800
VT: 0.7000

Localion: Not€s:

Odered:
8.00

Sell Price
$17.96

000,1
(1.00)

MULL MULL BARS

Conilguratlon:,36.,WHlTE,.5FLANGE,SERlES 700,ASSYTUBE

Produc't Family Series: 700.0000
Frame Type: .sFLANGE
Length: 36.0000
Packaging Options: N

Part Seleotion: ASSYTUBE
Size Sslection: CUSTOM
Frame Color: W

Location:

Producb O.d.6d

c4740

MULL

PW720

Totrl Ouantitv
,|

12

I

TOTAL SALE AMT:

TOTAL CUSTOMER
TAX:

NET SALE AMOUNT:

$2,797.08

$167 .82

$2,964.90
- t500-o0

Quote # 510650

Print Date 9/2012016

Page 2 of 3

s't43.68

-------..--
s $ov.qo.:

PLEASE REVIEW, SIGN, AND FAX TO 561-798-3291 TO PLACE ORDER.ALL PROPOSALS RETURNED TO
BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE SIGNED BY THE CUSTOMER WILL BE CONSIDERED FINAL APPROVAL OF ALL
MATERIALS AND THIER SPECIFICATIONS BY SAID CUSTOMER, ALL SIGNED ORDERS ARE FINAL AND CAN
NOT BE CHANGED OR CANCELLED ONCE ORDER IS PLACED-ANY ALTERATIONS FROM SPECS,
REOUESTEO BY BUYER, WHICH BUYER AGREES TO PAY WILL BECOME AN EXTM CHARGE OVER AND
ABOVE ESTIMATE. CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN READ AND ACCEPTED. INSTALLATIONS ARE IN PREPARED
OPENINGS. BUCKS NOT INCLUDED.QUOTE ARE VALIO FOR 30 DAYS FROM ABOVE DATE.

Notes:



M,oM,S@t
IIEPARTMEI{T Otr REGT'IATIORY AND DCONOMIC RESOI'BCEII (RER)
BOARD ANII CODE ADMINISTRATION DIVIIIION
NOTICE OF ACCEPTA}TCE (NOA)

MIAMT.DADE COT,INTY
PRODUCT CONTROL SECTION

I t805 SW 26 Stlet RooE 208
T (7EO 315-2590 F (716) 3ls-2599

,w'.tnirmidtdc.govlcco,!o pY

PGT Induffc.r IDc.
1070 Techologr Drlve
North Venicc, FL 34275

Scopr,:
This NOA is being issued under the applicable rules End regulations governing tho use of constnrstion
materials. The documentation submiued has been reviewed aDd 8co€pted by Miarni-Dado Couty RER -
Product Control Scction to be used h Miami Dade County and otho areas where allowed by the Authority
Ilaving Jurisdiction (AH.I).
This NOA shall not be valid after thc expiration date starcd bclow. Tbe Miami-Dade County Product
Contol Section (In Miami-Dade County) 8nd/or the AHJ (in areas other t+'"" Miami-Dade County) rcscrve
lhe right to have this product or material tested for quality as{urance pwpos€s. If this product or ma&rial
fails to pcrform in the accepted manner, the manufacturer will incur the exp€Dse of such testing aad tte AIU
may immediately rovokc, modi&, or suspend the use of such product or material wi6in tieir jurisdiction.
RER reservos the right to tcvokc this acceptmc., if it is detormined by Miami-Dade Cormty Product Contol
Scctior that this poduct or material fails to mect the rcquircmenfs of th6 applicable building code.
This producl is approved as describcd hcrcin, and has been dcsigncd to comply with the Florida Building
Code, including the High Velocity Hrmicane Zone.-

DESCRPTION: Seriec 6PW-701r20/&!0, Ahmlnnm Fired lVindow - L-lt[.L
AfpnOVlf. nOCUmnT: Drawing No. MD-720-t20.1, titlcd 'Tixed Window Installation Guidelines',
shccls I 6rough 11 of I l, dated M/lZl3, with revision B dated 05/05/16, prepered by manufacturer, signed
and scaled by Anlhony Lyna Millcr, P.E., bcaing the Miami-Dade County Product Control Revisiotr stamp
with thc Notice of Acccptance number and expiration datc by the Miami-Dade County Product C,ontot
Section.

MfSn ,Il I]t1tPa,CI RAItr{c: Large and Smell Misrile Imprct Resistent
LenfUnVC: Each unit shall bear a permanent label with the manufasErefs name or logo, city, statc,
modeVseries, and following statement 'Miami-Dade County Product Control Approved", unless othemrise
noted her€in.

REIVEW.U, of Ans NOA shall be considered after a renewal applicstion has bcen filed and thcrc has been
no change in the applicable building code negatively affecting the performance ofthis pnoduct.

TERIm{ATION of this NOA will occur after the eeiration date or if tlEre has been a rcvision or change
in tie mer6ffi, use, and/or maaufacture of the product or prcoess. Misuso of this NOA as an endqsement
of any producg for sales, advertising or any other purpos€s shall automaticalty terminate this NOA. Failure
to compty with any sectioa of this NOA shall be cause for temination and r€moval of NOA.
AOWnffSfMfNT: The NOA number precoded by the words Mimi-Dadc County, Florida, and
followed by the expiration date may be displayed in adverlising literatue. lf any portion of the NOA is
displayed, tten it shall be done in its eotirety.

INSPECTION: A copy of this entire NOA sball be providcd to thc us€r by 6e manufacturer or its
dishibutors and sball be available for inspection at thejob site at the reguest ofthe Building Official.
This NOA rwircc NOA# Itl)528.25 and consists of this page I and evidence pages E-1, E2 and 83, as
well as ap,proval documc.at mcntionad abovc.
The submittod documcntation was reviewed by Mmuel Pelte4 P.E,

NOA No. 164629.t1
EtplntioD Drtc: Febru.ry 19,2019

Approvrl D.tr: Augun 04,2016
prgc I



PGT Industries. Inc.

NOTICEOFACCD,PTAITICE: EVIDENCESI,]BMITTED

DRAWINGS
l. l,Ianufactue/s die drawings urd sections.

(Sabnidal urula NOA No. 03-1105.01)
2. Drawing No. MD-nO-820.f, titled "Fixd Window InsraUation Guidelines", shects 1

thougb ll of 11, dated U/1U13, with revision B ddd 05105116, prepared by
manufactuler, signed and sealed by Anthony Lynn Millcr, P.E.

TESIS
l. Test r€ports on: l) Uniform Static Air Prcssure Tesl Louiing per FBC, TAS 202-94

2) Lrge Missile lmpact Test per FBC, TAS 201-94
3) Cyclic Wind Pressrne loading per FBC, TAS 203-94

along with marked-up drawingp and installation diagram of a PVC stiding glass door,
a PVC fixed window and an aluminum sliding glass door, using: Kodispace 4SG TpS
spac€r syst€m, Durasealo spacer systenq Super SpaceP }fXfn spac€r system and )(L
Edgeru spacer system at iruulated glass, prepared by Fenestation Testing kborafory,
Inc., Test Reporu No. FTL{717, fTI-8968 and FTIJ970, dared ll/16/15,
06107116 oll.d 061021/16 respectivcly, all signed aud sealed by Idalmis Ortega, p.E.

2. Test reports on: 1) Air hfiltation Test, per FBC, TAS 202-94
2) Uniform Static Air Pressurc Tcs! Loading pct FBC,TAS 202-94
3) Watcr Resistance Tes! per FBC, TAS 202-94
4) Large Missile Impact Test per FBC, TAS 201-94
5) Cyclic Wind Pressure tnading per FBC, TAS 203-94
6) Forced Entry Test per FBC 2411.3.2.1, and TAS202-94

along with marked-up drawings and installation diagram ofan aluminum fixed
window, pcpared by Fcnestration Testing Laboratory, Inc., Test Report No.
Fn-72t2, aatA, 0B?lll3, signed and sealed by Marlin D. Brinso& p.E.
(Submitlcd toder NOA No. 134502.03)

3. Test repofts on: l) Air Infiltation Tes! per FBC, TAS 202-94
2) Uniform Static Air Pressue Test Loading per FBC, TAS 202-94
3) Water Resistance Tes! per FBC, TAS 202-94
4) Lage Missile Impact Tcst per FBC, TAS 201-%
5) Cyclic Wind Pressure loading per FBC, TAS 203-94

along with marked-up drawings aud installation diagram of an aluminum fixed
window, prepared by Fenestation Testing Labormory, Lrc., Test Repofts No.
tr'TL-3835 md FTII3850, dstcd 07i 18/03 aurd07l3tl03 respectively, all signed and
sealed by Joseph C. Chan, P.E.
(Sabmittcd unbr NOA Na 03-1105.01)

Erplntloo Dete: February 19,2019
Approval Dete: August 04, 2016

E-1

P.E.
iner
9.r4



PGT Iudustries. Inc.

NOTICEOFACCEPTAITCE: EVIDENCESUBMITTED

CALCT]LATIONS
I. Anchor verifioation calculations and structural analysis, complying with FBC-St

Edition @014), datal 05/20115, prepared by manufactrner, signed and sealed by
Anthony Lynn Miller, P.E.
(Submiaed uader prcvious NOA No. I 5-0528.26)

2. Glazing complies \ dth ASTM El3{n-0!)

QUALMY ASSTIRANCE
1. Mimi-Dade Department of Regulatory and Economic Resources @ER).

MATERIAL CERTtr'ICATIONS
l. Notice of Acceptec€ No. f 4-0916.f 0 issued to Kunrry Americq Inc for their

sKuraray Butacite@ PVB Glsss Interlayef dated 0425/15, expiring od 12111116.
2. Notice of Acceptance No. 14{915.11 issued to Kuremy America, Inc. for their

"Kuraray SentryGlas@ (Cleer and White) Glass Intertyers" dEted 06/25115,
expiring on 07lM/18.

3. TREMCO Pafl No. TR-14271E EPDM exterior glazing gasket complying with the
following:
a) ASTM C864 Specification for Dense Elastomeric Compression Seal Gaskets,

Setting Blocks, and Spacers with Option II exceptions.
b) ASTM Dt12 Standard Test Methods for Vulcanized Rubber and The,lrroplastic

Elastomers-Tension of 1600 PSI.
c) ASTM D3958 Test Methods for Rubber Property--Compression Set for 22 HRS

158"F.
d) ASTM D 524 Test Method for Tear Strength of Conventiooal Vulcanized Rubber

and Thermoplastic Elastomers of 143 lb/ in.

Etpirati,on Ilate: Februery 19, 2019
ApproYrl D8te: August 04,2016

E-2



F.

PGT Industries. Inc.

NOTICE OF ACCEPTAIICE: EVIDENCE STJBItrITTED

STATEMENTS
l. Statement letter of confonnance, complying with ItsC-56 Edttton @014), dated May

20, 20 I 5, issued by mmufachrer, signed and sealed by Anthony Lynn Miller, P.E.
(Subntaal uader prevbus NOA Na 15-0528.26)

2. Statement letter ofno financial interest, dated N{ay 20,2015, issued by manufactr:rer,
signed and sealed by Anthony Lynn Miller, P.E.
(Submited nder previonr NOA No. 15452&26)

3. laboratory compliarce letter for Test Report No. FTL72I2, dated 03121/13, siped
and sealed by Mrlin D. Brinso& P.E.
(Subttttud uader previous NOA No. 13-0502,03)

4. Ixbordory compliancc letter for Test Reports No. FTL3835 and FTI-3E50, dated
07118103 and 07131103 respectively, all signed and sealed by Joseph C. Chao, P.E.
(Submlttcd wder NOA Na 03-1105.01)

5. Proposal No. lGO125 issued by the Product Contol Seotion, dated March 09, 2016,
signed by Ishaq Chand4 P.E.

OTIIERS
1. Notice of Acceptance No. lfl)528.26, issued to PGT Indusries for lheir Series ?W-

701/7201820" Aluminum Fixed Window - L.M.I." approved on 07l09ll5 and expiring
on02ll9l19.

Erpirrtloo Ilatc: Fcbrurry 19, 2019
Approvrl Dric: August lX, 2016

E-3

NoA No.Y60529.14



3
P: r-+F

EEEiEEEEEEE

EEEEEEEEEE

*HEEEE;EE

iiEiEEBEE

EEEiEAEEI

aE;EEgEE
?C E5 ;E;

3x
EY
5Ee;
FS

z

)

a

a

E

o
o
H

i
6

d
o
7

8

F

39!9
E:8 F
HSEE

SEEg
19le
EEa{

EiE;q:ef;

EEEE

qEHi

ARSE
Y.142P
E9r6

EEf;*
EB;;
i 
iEi

EsE'iaa
EF9
EiE
rEE
EAl

HEE

Eg

II
2

I,
2
H
2
I
a
E
d

E
6

E
3

t
€
d

q

z
2

E

IHE E gi[E

llE H ruEE

IEEEaEE

EEEEEEE

iEEEEEE
'E* i EBE

Ag HEe

EE AEB

i3EEE
gEHES
E E65E gE

t{

3
E

2
8
=P
,
3

z

E

E oi

aa
:E
za9;
7,
EiE!
E!
aF
IB

:p
trP

P!
EE

d2
OE

gr
zZ
9i
t
e

2

jE
z

IE

E
E

B

e
E

ts

E
3

c
4-
a
7

F

I

=
F
6

3

i
=F

I

2

I
It

B
E

E
-9

19

o

I

I

=

=
6
B

=

,
E

I9

BE
!!r

IE!i
3E

o!!
iU
>=
ee

e;
6P
Ei
2z

EE

Eg

E8,io,

EE
HE

AE
dtB

EB
!tE
;E
FE

=ctrr
E6
BE

I

LE

x3EJ
EE
BP
E!l;

EE

XE

Ble

gfl
?o

!@
3E

.Z

AEiE
EA
EF
;?

35
E:
fr,

Er
!!!
!'iI

9
T

6

se:
F91
>6rn
5 it=
; ctE
3 El9

A;E

AHE

EdE
:EH
:iE
E:C
HE:
61<
BEE

90E
1=9

Eq!
;dE
99i

Ftfi
e619

bts

EE

EIF
El*,D
tEr

!IE

EE
*E
is

EEEE

iEEE
?TEE
E*E
E EE

ti'-
s E6

ts99
gH;
o le

3Eqisl
Et9

=BE
E E]
c Ed
E;B9 lE
isgI rP

EHX
JEE
: sl
gEE

le

t
Eqa:

( t - "-1-----

EI Effi+
EI 

=rE-r-
E Ell .. ill
EEJ "I

ffi
6
I

TE

I
I
i

.I

E!
6
it
F
5

t::ze,

lifr:#



OF REGUI"ATORY AND ECONOMIC RESOIJRCES (RI,R)

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
PRODUCT CONTROL SECTION

I I 805 SW 26 Stree! Room 208
T (786) 315-2590 F (786) 3ts-259

www.miaElidadc.rovlcconona

BOARD AND CODE ADMIMSTRATION DIVISION

NOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE (NOA)
PGT Industrics, Inc.
1070 Technologr Drive
North Venice, FL 34275

Scort:
This NOA is being issued under the applicable mles and rogulations goveming the use of construction
materials. The documentation submitted has been reviewed and acceped by Miami-Dade Couty RER -
Product Control Section to be used in Miami Dade County and other areas where allowed by the Authority
Having Jurisdiction (AIII).
This NOA shau not b€ valid after the expiration date stat€d below. The Miami-Dade County hoduct
Control Section (In Miami-Dade County) and/or the AHJ (in areas other than Miami-Dade County) reserve

the right to have this product or material tested for quality assursnce purposes, If this product or material
fails to perform in the accepted manner, the manufacturer wi ll incur tlre expense of such testing and the AHJ
may immediately revoke, modiff, or suspend the use of such product or material within their jurisdiction.

RER reserves the right to revoke this acceptance, if it is determined by Miami-Dade County Product Conlrol
Section that this product or material fails to me€t the requirements ofthe applicable building code.

This product is approved as described herein, and has been designed to comply with the Florida Building
Code, including the High Velocity Hurricane Zone.-

DESCRPTION: Series *AW-740" Aluminum Awning Window - L,M.I.
APPROVAL DOCIUMENT: Drawing No. MD-AW740L1\4 titled "Awning Window Details - LM &
SM", sheets I tkough l1 of 11, dated 08/08/12, with revision B dated 05105116' prepared by manufacturer,

signed and sealed by Anthony Lynn Miller, P,E., bearing the Miami-Dade County Product Control Revision

stamp with the Notice of Acceptance number and expiration date by the Miami-Dade County Product

Control Section.

MISSILE IIffiACT RATING: Large and Small Missile Impact Reslstrnt

L,I-BEI,II{G: Each unit shall bear a permanent label with the manufacturels name or logo, city, state,

modeVseries, and following statement "Miami-Dade Comty Product Control Approved", unless otherwise
noted herein.

RfXfWal ofAns NOA shall be considered affer a renewal application has been filed and there has been

no change in the applicable building code negatively affecting the performance of this product.

TERIr,mfAfloN of this NoA will occur after the expiration date or if there has been a revision or change

in the materials, use, and/or manufacture of the product or process. Misuse of this NOA as an endorsement

of any producq for sales, advertising or any other purposes shall automatically terminate this NOA. Failure
to comply with any section of this NOA shall be cause for termination and rernoval of NOA-

ADVERTISEIreNT: The NOA number preceded by the words Miami-Dade County, Florida, and

followed by the expiration date may be displayed in a&ertising literature. If any portion of the NOA is
displayed, then it shall be done in its entirety.

INSPECTION: A copy of this entire NOA shall be provided io the user by the manufacturer or its
distributors and shall be available for insp€ction at thejob site at the request ofthe Building Offrcial.
This NOA revises NOA# 15-0519.11 and consists of this page I and evidence pages E-1 and E 2, as well as

approval document menlioned above.
The submitted documentation was reviewed by Mrnuel Perea PJ.

NOA No. 16-0111.23
Erpiration Date: April 11, 2018

Approvrl Date: September 08,2016
Psge I



PGT Industries. Inc.

NOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE: EVIDENCE STJBMITTED

DRAWINGS
1. Manutacturer's die drawings and sections.

(Submitted under NOA Na I2-1218.0D
2. Drawing No. MD-AW74OLM, titled "Awning Window Derails - LM & SM", sheets

1 through l l of I l, dated 08/08/12, with revision B dated 05/05/16, signed and sealed
by Anthony Lynn Miller, P.E.

TESTS
1. Test reports on: l) Uniform Static Air Pressure Test, Loading per FBC, TAS 202-94

2) Large Missile Impact Test per FBC, TAS 20 1 -94
3) Cyclic Wind Pressure Loading per FBC, TAS 203-94

along with marked-up drawings and installation diagram of a PVC sliding glass door,
a PVC fixed windo* roi1 31 sl,,minwn sliding glass door, using: Kodispace 4SG TPS
spacer system, Durasealo spacer system, Super Spacer@ NXTfr spacer system and XL
EdgerM spacer system at insulated glass, prepared by Fenestration Testing Laboratory,
lnc., Test Reports No. FTG87[7, F'tL8958 and tr'TL-8970, dated, 11116115,

06107116 and 06/O2/16 respectively, all signed and sealed by Idalmis Ortega, P.E.
2. Test reports on: l) Air Infiltration Test per FBC, TAS 202-94

2) Uniform Slatic Afu Presswe Test, Loading per FBC, TAS 202-94
3) Water Resistance Tes! per FBC, TAS 202-94
4) Forced Entry Test, per FBC 2411.3.2.1,ail,TA9202-94
5) Large Missile knpact Test per FBC, TAS 201-94
6) Cyclic Wind Pressure Loading per FBC, TAS 203-94

along with marked-up drawings and installation diagram ofa series CA740P
aluminum projected (awning) window, prepared by Fenestation Testing Laboratory,
Inc. Test Report No. FTL-7061, dated 70/03112, signed and sealed by Marlin D.
Brinson, P.E.
(Submitted under NOA No. 12-1218.07)

CALC{JLATIONS
1. Anchor verification calculations and structural analysis, complying with FBC-56

Edition @014), dated 05/16/15, prepared by manufacturer, signed and sealed by
Anthony Lynn Milla, P.E.
(Submitted under previous NOA No. 15-0519.11)

2. Glazing complies with ASTM E1300-04

Erplrailon Date; April ll,20lE
Approval Date: September 08,2016

E-l



F.

PGT Industries. Inc.

NOTICEOFACCEPTAIiICE: EVIDENCEST]BMITTED

QUALITY ASST'RANCE
1. Miami-Dade Departunent of Regulatory and Economic Resources (RER).

MATERIAL CERTIHCATIONS
1. Notice of Acceptance No. 14-0916.10 issued to Kuraray America, Inc. for their

"Kuraray Butacite@ PVB Glass Interlayer" dated 04125/15, expiring on 12111116.

2. Notice of Acceptance No. 14-0916,11 issued to Kuraray America, Inc. for their
"Kuraray SentryGlas@ (Clear and White) Glass Interlayers" daled 06125/15,
expiring on 07104/18.

STATEMENTS
1. Statement letter of conformance, complying with FBC-S'I Edition (2014), dated May

16,2015, issued by manufacturer, sigaed and sealed by Anthony Lynn Miller, P.E.
(Submitteil under pruvious NOA No. 15-0519.11)

2. Statement letter ofno financial interest, dated May 16,2015, issued by manufacturer,
signed and sealed by Anthony Lynn Miller, P.E.
(Submitted under previow NOA No. 15-0519.11)

3, Proposal No. 16-0125 issued by the Product Conhol Section, dated March 09,2016,
signed by Ishaq Chanda, P.E.

OTTTERS
l. Notice of Acceptance No. 15-0519.11, issued to PGT Industries for their Series "AW-

740" Aluminum Awning Window - L.M.I. approved on07116115 and expiring on
04/1U18.

P.E.
Eraminer

tG0114.23
Expiratior Date : April ll,20lE

Approyal Dat€: S€ptembcr 08,2016
E-2

Product

D.

E.



I

t2

t
tl
9N
It

t9
,t

.5

I
I

,

i
E.c
EI;
Ei!

Nl

dl
El

5l E.o !!
12
t,,rl_

Etu
bt

L
r
,G
aB

". 1t
I

a

i5

c

9!
Ffr

I

El

1ol

I
F

5
o

#
- i,
HI J
El

sl(,l

EIO9
5:i-

{

E

eii.

dE

I

_I

T

499;
f i;i;
dE-.S
acE5
e26

T

{

1\6n)

{b

Pi
d,

2
t

6

EEtd

t
5

e
t

;
a

.,

2e a r

sfrtrqE;-s EcE

:E!:AEEEE iEg
5BE35Egj3 FEE
i,2fiuZCZqE Ei6

ErBfft*si EEEE

garEt?EE;E 
[EEiEEEEISIEaiaHglgllEa aa iIE;E iilllEils ailiii;i

t

=oti
IE,l
Efi1;:
96

,rI
9ED

\\--

]o
z

=o
z
I
Fz
a

i

Fl

i;

o

d

z

a

=J
a
.J

F
uJ

=e
z

=z
z
3

z
o
F

u.t

llt

a
ul
Foz
J
d
lrJz
uJ

Ep.6!oi
:r' 5;

Eu3"
E=iB
;l"I

r
e9

IE
5

=tololzl
3l
otzl
zl
BI
<l
TLo
z
o
trl
<t>t
gt
uJI

*i
d



(http:/lwwwf inehomebuilding.com)

Character- Def ining Windows
ln this "Drawing Board" column, architect Lynn Hopkins describes both the
characteristic and uncharacteristic features of four broad house styles
By Lmo Hopldm (hftp://wwvr.in€hom.bulHlng.csr!/.uthor/hn+opktN) I lssue 22a 0rte://wrw.ffn hom.buiHing.corMssuc/201 I /t .t /tssu€-
221t

Through their sizq shap€, ar.angement and trim, windows do much to establish the character of a house. Because they also must fit in as part of a
larger whoh, choosing windows thal work well with a house's overall style is important.

Most houses either date ftom a specifictime period or reference a particulsr architectural style. Understanding that style and its design conventions
can help you lo select and anange windows lhat reinforce this intended character.

Here, l'lldescribe how window choices reflect and inform the character of houses in four broad architectural styles, including ranch/midceniury
modern, Craftsman, Victorian, and colonial. l'll also point out some common selection errors and missed opponunities.

lnth€ illuslrations, l've intentionally avoided the labels 'Do' and 'Don't' because sometimes breaking with convention is desirable. ln this discussion,
however, l'm assuming the goal is to ctoose windows that reinforce an intended stvle. Therefore, I point to the differenc€s between 'characteristic-
window features of eaitr style ano rne@ stytes.

RanclvMidcentury Modem

(http://s3.amazonaws.com/finehomebuilding.s3.launtoncloud.com t appt uploadsl2Ol6/O4t091 1 1lli, 5/021 224090_xlg.jpg)
1 950rfr..€nr
Ranches are single-story houses with shallow pitched roofq a 1950s building typethat popularized organizational objectives from the midcentury-
modern architectural movement. Unlike the preceding styles, however, many ranch-style homes never reached their full potential. This may be
because few respond consistently to the broad, horizontal orientation oflheir one-story form. Many ranches in the Eastern pan ofthe country have
colonialstvle multipane windows, sometimes with shuners-"l"ments that are m ktyle house. Often,they have a large
picture window that lacks scale and not only provides a view ofthe neighbors'house across the street bul also allows lhose neighbors an
unobstructed view ofthe ranch's occupants.

A more successful window strategy for a single-story home is lo embrace its hodzontal proponions by grouping windows together into long,
horizontal bands. Tdm can b€ pairted the same color as the window sashes and made distinct ftom the siding to help unifythese bands, downplaying
and disguising Places where ryindows arc inienupted by solid walls. Horazomal muntins reinforce the lateral o,ientation funher Casemen! awning,
and gliding windows, all introduced in the mid-2oth century are appropriate and practical choices for modern-style houses. Clerestory windows,
tucked high on the wall and underthe eaves, are a g,eat way to bring a band of naiural light into a room while maintaining privacy, and they are
inherently horizontal in character.

The midcentury ranch is a style that accommodates asymmetry, either on the facade as a whole or in more modest instances, such as a single
sidelite next to the entry door.

Craftsman
1gfirs-l9/lll3
This era also includes prairie-and bungalow€tyle houses. These houses have more horizontal proportions than their tallVictonan predecessors. The

1:T,_"I::I,I^O-"0 
gables and wide, overhanging eaveq looks like a single-story housewirh additional living spacerucked away in a largq



Technological developmenl during this era enabled larger glass sizes than had been possible beforq but some lite divisions characteristic of earlier
styles were retained, eithe. in the upper sash or a lransom window. A 6-over-1 or +over-1 muntin contiguration has the advantage of providing the
visualinlerest of smaller paneq or lites, in the top sash, but it allows an unobstructed viewthrough the singlelite lower sash. Cottagestyle windows,
with a bottom sash that's tallerlhan the upper sash, were commonly used in combination with conventional equatieight sash windows to unify
windows of different heights visualr- These two window types can work together when the upper sashes of both are the same heighl and align, even
iflhe sills donl-

Muntins also can help to unify a rf,indow assembly with a vvider center window and two nanower flankers. lfthe glass in the wider window is half
again as wide as the glass in the narrowe. windows. each lite will be ihe same size when the glass is divided into four panes on the narrowe. window
and into six on the wider. The consisteot size ofthe lites ties the various window vridths together into a harmonious whole.
Dormers are typical of this sty'e.

lfyour house has a dormer, make sure the dormer is sized so that it appears subordinate to the roof and is positioned so that there is adequate roof
visible below Use multiple nanower windows with muntins to help reducethe scale and make the windows se€m smaller.

(http://s3.amazonaws.com/finehomebuilding.s3.tauntoncloud.com lapp/uploadsl2l16104lOg11143s/o21224092-i jdgjps)

(hnp://s3.amazonaws.com/finehomebuilding.s3.tauntoncloud.com tapp/uploadsl2O16t04tOg111436/021224092-2_xlgjpg)

Victorian
r 83os-t!.ly I 900s
Greek-revival, Gothic, Que€n Annq shingle, and similar-style houses that reference the mid- to late l fth century otten have distinclly venical
proportions. Rooms and houses tended to be tall, so windows also could be tall. Glassmaking technology ofthe time made fairly large panes ofglass
possible, and windows orthis era often have a 2-over-2 muniin configuration. A new generation of architects broke with earlier conventions, often
grouping windows together. Building forms were more complicated as well, often with muhiple gabled or hip roofs, bay windows, and porches. The
variety and asymmetry ofthis house form could accommodate a wide variety ofwindow sizes and groupings.

Omamentation was also highty favo.ed at this time. Trim and panels around windows took on a marked exuberance. Stainedglass feature windows
were common, especially in stairways.

lfthe house you are designing has venical proportions. consider reflecting lhose proportions with the muntin configuration of your windows. Hous€s
with a variety of roofs will happily accommodate a wider variety of window sizes and shapes than a simple gabled box can. Keeping the glass panes
in the windows proportionalto each other helps to tie multiph window sizes together visually.

Avoid covering lhe wall below a baywindow wilh the same siding used on ihe resl ofthe house. lnstead, usetrim and paneling to pullwindows and
walls together visually into a larger assembv. Likewise, donl let an attic window float in an undifferentiated field of conventional siding. Add some
trim, and/or changethe siding type totielhe window into a focalpoinithat celebrates the gable and the variety inherent in this house form



E-&

(http://s3.amazonaws.com/finehomebuilding.s3.launtoncloud.com / app/uploadsl2o16l04to91 1 1 436/021 224094-1_xlg.jpg)

(http://s3-amazonaws.com/finehomebuilding.s3.tauntoncloud.com tappluploadst2}l6l04lOg111436tO21ZZ4Ag4-ZJdg.jpS)

Colonial
l606rrtasrt
Colonialstyle got its start in the late'l6oos and has floudshed since. with muhiple revivals and variations. Many stylistic conventions of colonial
houses can be traced back to practical considerations. colonialhouses had small-paned windows because glass size at the time was limited. The
panes, usually about 8 in. or 9 in. wide and 10 in. or '12 in. tall, were held in the window sash by muntins. Each window sash had muhtple panes
arranged in lwo, three, or four columns and rows. Doublehung windows, with their two sliding sashes, are often identified by the number of lites in
each sash. ln the colonial era, 6over{, 9-over-9, and 12-over-12 configurations were common. Munlins have lhe added design advanlage of
introducing a levelo, detailthat provides interest and scale io a building! tacade.

Most colonial homes followed oH-world design conventions that limited the widths ot wallopenings. lndividual windows, often evenly spaced and all
the same size, were common. Thus, consistent window sizes and a symmelrical anangement are appropriate for a contemporary colonialhouse, or
any house with a simpletwcstory, boxlike form.

Trim atound colonialwindows was wide, making a design feature of the need io cover the gap between window frame and rough opening. Shutters
were common for weather-related reasons and were sized to cover the window completely.

ll follows, then. that large, singlelite casement windows with narow or no tim look odd on a house with a bory colonialshape. g€cause they lack
muntins,these windows don't provide a clue about human scale, making the house look vacuous and banal. Likewise, ganging windows together in
muhiples, varying their sizes, and ananging them in an asymmetdcal fashion are also at odds with this form of house.

lfthe house you are designing is a two€tory box with a simple gable or hip roof and olher traditional detailq a regular. prediqtable arangement o,
similarsize windows willdo the mosl to enhance its character. Add interest to the facade wilh the muntin configuration and simple but generous trim
around the windows.

(http://s3.amazonaws.com/finehomebuilding.s3.launtoncloud.com t appluploadsl2}16t}4lOg111437 tO21224096-l Jlgjpf,)



H; '+' b;
(http://s3.amazonaws.clm/finehomebuilding-s3.laurtoncloud.com tagp/uploadsl2o16lclltog11r|r'37n212.4og62tlgjpg:)

Drawings: Lynn Hopkins

Become a member today
Get instant access to all FineHomebuilding.com content.

start Your Free Trial (https://subscribe.rinehomebuilding.com/membership?ref=fhb-anicle-sidebarflember)






	Agenda Outline
	Item 4A - HRPB Minutes for 10-19-2016
	Item 4B - HRPB Workshop Minutes for 9-21-2016
	Item 5.B.1 - Proof of Publication 230 N Palmway
	Item 5.E.2 - 230 N Palmway Staff Report
	Item 5.E.2 - Attachment 1 - HRPB 16-00100228 230 N Palmway Demolition Decision Criteria
	Item 5.E.2 - Attachment 2 - HRPB 16-00100228 230 N Palmway New Construction Decision Criteria
	Item 5.E.2 - Attachment 3 - Photos
	Item 5.E.2 - Attachment 4 - Survey
	Item 5.E.2 - Attachment 4 - Architectural Drawings
	Garage SITE - Wiseman-AS-1 PLAN
	Garage Plan - Wiseman-A-1 PLAN
	Garage ELEV - Wiseman-A-2 PLAN

	Item 5.G.1 - 1005 N Palmway Staff Report
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment 1 - HPBR 16-00100215 - Decision Criteria
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment 2 - Photos
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment 3 - Survey and Site Data Calculations
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment 4 - Proposed Architectural Drawings
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment 5 - Product Information
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment 6 - Original Architectural Drawings
	Item 5.G.2 - 1401 S Lakeside Dr Staff Report
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment 1 - HRPB 16-00100234 - 1401 S Lakeside Drive Decision Criteria
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment 2 - Photos
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment 3 - COA#16-00100140 1401 S Lakeside Drive Staff Approval Letter and Drawings
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment 4 - Applicant Justification Statement
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment 5 - 1401 S Lakeside Original Architectural Drawings
	REVISED - Architectural Drawings - 11-9-2016.pdf
	rev-Garage SITE - Wiseman-AS-1 PLAN
	Garage Plan - Wiseman-A-1.0 STREETSCAPE
	rev Garage Plan - Wiseman-A-1 PLAN
	rev Garage ELEV - Wiseman-A-2 PLAN




